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Vision, mission and strategy

Vision 

To be the symbol of a reliable domesti c insurance company for our customers.

Mission

We are a conti nuously developing non-life insurance company rendering reliable insurance services to 
all customers and co-operati on partners through the professional experience, proper administrati on and 
client-friendly atti  tude of our enti re staff .

Values

Strong mutual customer relati ons

We are easily and conveniently accessible through our representati ve offi  ces all over Estonia, our website or 
by telephone. Every customer is special for us. Any contacts between ourselves and our clients are always 
aimed at achieving a mutually sati sfying result. Our greatest value lies in the trust placed by our clients in 
the company.

Moti vati ng work environment

We off er our staff  a modern and innovati ve environment which serves the needs of every individual, in 
additi on to generati ng the team spirit required for achieving excellent results. We conti nuously improve our 
knowledge base, value their educati on and contribute to their professional enrichment. We consider the 
individual contributi on of all staff  members to the achievement of the common goals.

High-quality and reliable service

The high quality of our insurance services is guaranteed by our long-term experience, proper conduct of 
aff airs, and a short response ti me. We pay considerable att enti on to risk management and conti nuous 
improvement of our services. We remain open and objecti ve in any situati on, and will not compromise 
quality for purposes of quanti ty. Customers can always rely on us.

Organizati on

Salva Kindlustuse AS (hereinaft er the Company) has been operati ng in the Estonian insurance market since 
1993. In its nearly twenty three years of business, the Company has become one of the leading non-life 
insurance companies in Estonia, off ering a full range of services. The Company is registered in Estonia and 
main operati ng market is Estonia. In 2015, we started the cross-border insurance services.

The Company’s portf olio currently contains the most widely known non-life insurance products – a total 
of over 15 products. The Company’s customer base includes private individuals and businesses as well as 
companies and agencies from the public sector.

We fi nd it important to maintain insurance competence in the counti es and develop offi  ces and sales points 
in various regions of Estonia. The Company’s representati ve offi  ces (8) and sales offi  ces (8) are spread 
around Estonia, with the head offi  ce located in Tallinn.  
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Companies 
of the consolidati on group

Economic environment

In 2015, the overall economic growth fi gure (GDP) 
in Estonia grew by 1.2%. The main factor was the 
strong growth in private consumpti on. Consumer 
confi dence remained strong and the persistence of 
the wage growth has been the engine of growth. 
Last year, the purchasing power of the populati on 
grew also because of several extraordinary factors 
such as the lowering of taxes on labour, increase in 
child benefi ts and decrease in prices of motor fuel.

This modest growth was negati vely aff ected by a 
number of adverse factors like warm winter, which 
reduced the added value of the energy sector, low 
price of oil on the world market, which reduced 
the oil shale producti on volumes and sales prices. 
Foreign trade volume decreased due to the decline 
in key export markets.

Main acti vity of Salva Kahjukäsitluse OÜ is claim handling, rent of vehicles and asset management services 
mainly for the parent company. Business Informati on System OÜ is providing soft ware development services 
primarily for Salva Kindlustuse AS.

Salva Kindlustuse AS

Register number 
10284984

Salva Kahjukäsitluse OÜ

Register number 10259383
Parti cipati on 100%

Business Informati on 
Systems OÜ 

Register number 11611994
Parti cipati on 49%

In summary, we expect a cauti ous recovery in 
2016, however, it clearly depends on the economic 
health of Estonia’s trading partners.
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Non-life insurance market

In 2015, non-life insurance companies and 
branches in the Estonian insurance market 
collected a total of 278 806 thousand euros in 
insurance premiums. This consti tutes a 6.65% 
increase in premiums from the same period in 
2013 (2014: 261 414 thousand euros).

The largest share of all insurance categories off ered 
in the insurance market is held by various motor 
vehicle-related insurance categories – the manda-
tory motor third party liability insurance (25%) and 
the opti onal motor vehicle insurance (34%). The 
share of property insurance amounts to 26% and 
the aggregated share of all the remaining insur-

In 2015, the non-life insurance market conti nued 
increasing, similarly to previous two years, by 7%. 
It indicates that Estonia’s economic environment is 
favourable for both private individuals and compa-
nies for hedging their insurance risks.

The weather was favourable for the year 2015, 
parti cularly in the property insurance risks and no 
signifi cant damages arose from the forces of nature. 
On the other hand, MTPL market in whole earned 
technical loss for several years and the situati on 
should not sati sfy the expectati ons of any insurer. 
Growth of prices for car repair services and  increase 
in the frequency of accidents contributed to the 
increase of compensati ons paid but in the highly 
competi ti ve motor insurance market insurance 
premiums asked not to keep up with the situati on. 

ance categories 15% of the market. The amount 
of disbursements in 2015 was 161 325 thousand 
euros. This consti tutes a 9% increase in disburse-
ments from the same period in 2014 (2014: 148 
539 thousand euros).

The structure of insurance premiums has not changed 
signifi cantly in recent years. The same structure is 
evident in insurance claim payments, with the rate 
amounti ng to 58% as of the end of 2015 (2014: 57%).

According to the data of Stati sti cs Estonia market 
shares of non-life insurance companies and 
foreign branches expressed in premiums received 
by the end of 2015:

In 2016, we expect the non-life insurance market 
volume to maintain the same growth as in 
previous year due to expectedly higher prices in 
Motor MTPL market as 10% loss every year should 
not be sustainable in the long term and could lead 
to the decline in service quality of services. 

2015 was a preparatory year of transiti on to 
the new pan-European solvency requirements 
(Solvency II), in which the insurance companies 
were obliged to put more emphasis on organ-
ising its internal regulati ons and reporti ng capa-
biliti es. New solvency requirements and Solvency 
II reporti ng obligati on apply in full with the new 
Insurance Business Act, valid from the 1st of 
January 2016.

If P&C Insurance AS

ERGO Insurance SE

Swedbank P&C Insurance AS

AB Lietuvos draudimas Eesti filiaal

Seesam Insurance AS

Salva Kindlustuse AS

BTA Insurance Company SE Eesti filiaal

AAS Gjensidige Baltic Eesti filiaal

AS Inges Kindlustus

D.A.S. Õigusabikulude Kindlustuse AS

Kredex Krediidikindlustus AS

Eesti Liikluskindlustuse Fond, MTÜ

26,79%

16,47%

15,33%

13,84%

10,15%

6,86%

5,08%

3,33%

0,86%

0,76%

0,51%

0,07%
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Revenue

In 2015, total revenues increased by 8% compared 
to the previous year. The increase is mainly related 
to the growth of insurance premiums. Among reve-
nues, the premiums earned, net of re-insurance, 
increased by 9%, income from service and commis-
sion fees and other income remained the same. 

In 2015, Salva Kindlustuse AS gathered 19 093 
thousand euros in gross insurance premiums, 
increased by 15% compared to the last year. (2014: 

16 571 thousand euros). Insurance premiums 
increased in almost all lines of insurance. The 
largest growth- and faster than the rest of the 
market- was recorded in property insurance and 
travel insurance. Due to intensifi ed cooperati on 
with almost all large travel bureaus travel insur-
ance premiums increased by 27%.  Due to acti v-
iti es as cross-border insurers property insurance 
premiums grew by 25% in volume.

Financial results

Salva Kindlustuse AS’s consolidated net profi t in 
2015 was 487 thousand euros (2014: 1 558 thou-
sand euros).
The profi t from insurance acti vity amounted to 
535 thousand euros. The indicator for the previous 
year was 1 599 thousand euros. The technical 

result was primarily infl uenced by worsened loss 
rati o in motor TPL insurance as a result of which 
decreased reinsurance commissions of some 
previous years. Increased commissions related to 
growth of sales had also a negati ve impact on the 
result.
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Total claims incurred in 2015 amounted to a total 
of 11 909 thousand euros –10% less than in the 
last year (2014:13 253 thousand euros). Claims 
disbursements increased by 12% compared to the 
last year; claims adjustment expenses increased 
by 1% and income from refunds and residual 
assets decreased 55%. 

The number of loss claims sati sfi ed in 2015 
amounted to 9 919 and increased by 25% 
compared to the year before (2014: 7 966).

Sti ll accounti ng for large share of the total number 
of loss claims were vehicle insurance-related loss 
claims. Motor TPL insurance loss claims make up 
36% and Motor Own Damage insurance losses 
26% of the total number of loss claims. The share 
of property insurance loss claims have increased 
from 13% to 16%.

At the beginning of the year the Motor Insur-
ance Act came into eff ect. The New law allowed 
persons suff ering from traffi  c accident to contact 
their own insurance company and not just the 
off ender’s one. The new opportunity was well 
received by the customers. About a quarter of 
the traffi  c accidents handled by Salva Insurance 
were related to situati ons where the client of 

another insurance company caused damage to 
the customer of Salva and the latt er decided to 
turn to the so-called “Own insurer”. Being one of 
the few insurance companies who possess offi  ces 
and claim handlers in almost all counti es, this kind 
of service is very convenient and safe way for our 
customersto deal with us. We hope that this will 
become a growing trend in motor insurance, and 
customers can choose not just the price but also 
the service which is delivered with the product.

Motor insurance and vehicle insurance buyers 
can use Salva vehicle assistance service, which 
provides needed informati on, registrati on of 
damage and technical assistance in the event of 
an unexpected failure of vehicle, towing and the 
delivery to desti nati on. Last year customers got 
help in nearly 700 events.

The greatest claim last year was in property insur-
ance, where compensati on of 147 thousand euros 
was paid for the damage that occurred as a result 
of breakage of the water system and 131 thousand 
euros was paid for the restorati on of a building 
destroyed by fi re.

The consolidated loss rati o, net of reinsurance, 
was 59.56 % (2014:49.7%).

Claims and operati ng expenses
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increase in acquisiti on costs is in conformity with 
the rise in the volume of premiums.

The rati o of consolidated expenses to premiums, 
net of reinsurance, made up 36% at the end of 
2015 and remained at the same level compared 
to 2014.

Owner’s equity
In 2015, Salva Kindlustuse AS’s shareholders’ 
equity decreased by 3%, and amounted to 14 331 
thousand euros. 900 thousand euros was paid as 
dividends to owners in 2015. 

Investi ng acti viti es

On the strategic level, the investment acti viti es of 
Salva Kindlustuse AS are controlled by the fi nan-
cial director in cooperati on with the respecti ve 
specialist. The structure of liabiliti es and respon-
sibiliti es has completely justi fi ed itself so far, 
guaranteeing suffi  cient control and prompt deci-
sion-making capability. Our investment acti viti es 
are based on the interests of the policyholders 
and the best possible protecti on aff orded to the 
benefi ciaries.

In 2015, the result was similar to the previous year. 
The outcome was infl uenced by declining bond 
markets, where bond prices believed as being with 

Operati ng expenses for 2015 increased by 7% 
compared to 2014, amounti ng to 5 857 thou-
sand euros. Administrati ve expenses decreased 
by 2% and acquisiti on costs increased by 10%. 
Total payroll expenses and commissions paid to 
intermediaries are refl ected in acquisiti on costs 
and they decreased by 2% and increased by 35% 
respecti vely compared to the previous year. The 

2014
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lower risk, fell more than signifi cantly riskier stock 
prices. Short-term interest rates were sti ll low, as 
in the uncertain economic environment, enter-
prises don’t dare to make investments and despite 
the eff orts of the central banks the infl ati on rate 
will remain lower than expected. The forthcoming 
period is characterised by uncertainty and vola-
ti lity, so we try to keep our fi nancial investment 
portf olio yields on an opti mum level. 

The consolidated net investment revenue from 
investi ng acti viti es amounted to 144 thousand 
euros (2014: 141 thousand euros). The consoli-
dated annual rate of return on investment was 
0.84%. The annual rate of return of the bond port-
folio was 0.76%.

As of the end of the year, fi nancial investments 
exceed the net technical reserves by 9 233 thou-
sand euros, ensuring suffi  cient liquidity in the 
company.

In conclusion, it can be said that Salva Kindlustuse 
AS was able to maintain the value of the invest-
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ments, maintain an adequate dispersion and ensure 
a decent positi on for the upcoming period. The 
upcoming period will be infl uenced by low interest 
rates and unpredictable economic situati on.

The distributi on of credit risk in the bond portf olio 
was the following: 21% of the bonds were rated 

Structure of fi nancial investments as of 31.12.2015

A (S&P) or Aa (Moody’s), 29% had a rati ng of B or 
Baa and Ba.

93% of investments are held in euros. In the 
opinion of the Management Board the currency 
risk is minimal.

Bonds
94,26%

Term deposits
0,56%

Mortgage loans
and other

0,76%

Equities
4,42%

Mortgage loans and other

Term deposits

Equities

Bonds

Organisati on 
and management

The Group‘s employee retenti on is very stable. This 
is supported by a competi ti ve background system, 
a modern working environment and a strong 
organisati onal culture. Internal resources are used 
where possible for establishment of new positi ons 
supporti ng organisati onal development, with the 
current employees off ered a career opportunity.

Staff  training is organised on the basis of the 
established training policies. The Company co-op-
erates with consulti ng and training companies in 
management and sales issues. Product training of 
the sales staff  is carried out by product managers 
and loss adjusters.

The Company’s supervisory board has six 
members, with the total remunerati on paid to 
members of the supervisory board amounti ng to 
31 thousand euros (2014: 31 thousand euros).

In the autumn the board member Algor Orav left  
the Company. Now the Company’s management 
board has four members with the total remuner-
ati on paid to members of the management board 
amounti ng to 379 thousand euros (2014: 382 
thousand euros).

Total payroll expenses (including taxes) amounted 
to 2 958 thousand euros in 2015. Payroll expenses 
have decreased by 2% from last year (2014: 3 006 
thousand euros). 

As of the end of 2015, the Group had 125 
employees, including 68 sales employees. 
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The Group’s outlook for 2016

In 2016 we expect the non-life insurance market 
volume to maintain the same growth as in previous 
year. We consider it our advantage and strength to 
have representati ve offi  ces in diff erent regions of 
Estonia, we try to hold and strengthen the local 
competence further. If the insurance market trend 
is to move services to the capital, we are trying 
to provide higher quality, more personalised and 
fl exible on-site service, including claims handling.

Besides this, we have successfully developed other 
customer communicati on and sales channels. Last 
year we saw a strong growth in the use of e-ser-
vices and in 2016 we will conti nue their develop-
ment and making them more customer-friendly.  
Our desire is to provide diverse, clear and custom-
er-friendly soluti ons for our customers. 

As in previous years, we want to contribute to the 
development of Estonia through supporti ng sports 
and culture in 2016. Salva Insurance conti nues a 
long-term cooperati on with Sports Club DUO, in 
order to boost Estonian youth volleyball and the 
game to become more acquainted and close to 
heart for more and more young people. First posi-
ti ve result are already visible- thousands of children 
in Estonia parti cipate in the Salva League series. 

The cooperati on conti nues between Estonian 
Concert and Salva. Being a major sponsor of Esto-
nian Concert, Salva insures all their assets starti ng 
from the concert halls to the musical instruments. 
We wish to help Estonian Concert comfortably 
devote to their main objecti ve - to provide a high 
level music experiences to lovers of music. On the 

other hand, with the assistance of Estonia Concert 
we hope to provide wonderful musical experi-
ences for Salva´s customers in diff erent parts of 
Estonia. 

When analysing the possible developments in 
the insurance market in 2016, it promises to be 
an exciti ng year and should bring some changes. 
In the year 2016 a new insurance company, 
Compensa Vienna Insurance Group, UADB Esto-
nian branch, enters the market. 

At the beginning of the year 2016, the new Insur-
ance Acti viti es Act entered into force. The new 
law will update the regulati ons of both insur-
ance companies and insurance intermediaries 
and carries the Estonian regulati on into line with 
the EU Solvency II and the Omnibus (II) directi ve. 
The law requires insurers to establish an eff ecti ve 
management system. An eff ecti ve management 
system means great att enti on to risk management 
and eff ecti ve internal control system. The law also 
requires a comprehensive system of reporti ng 
and disclosure. Adapti ng to the new require-
ments certainly requires extra ti me and additi onal 
resources from insurance companies.

Sti ll, we can say that the development of the 
insurance policy does not go quite in step with the 
development of the insurance market. Therefore, 
at the moment both insurance companies and 
brokerage fi rms are looking forward to the guide-
lines for implementati on of the Insurance Acti vi-
ti es Act in order to ensure transparent and driving 
competi ti on in the market in the long run.

Tiit Pahapill 

Chairman of the management board 
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Group 2015 2014 2013

In euros

For the reporti ng period

Gross premiums 19 092 524 16 571 243 15 531 391

Premiums earned, net of reinsurance 12 043 868 11 053 268 10 713 856

Gross claims incurred 11 909 283 13 253 435 8 739 728

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 7 172 882 5 493 503 5 741 188

Total operati ng expenses 5 856 995 5 467 846 5 355 413

Net operati ng expenses 4 605 551 4 209 924 3 931 190

 

Net loss rati o 59,6% 49,7% 53,6%

Net expense rati o 36,0% 35,8% 34,3%

Net combined rati o 95,6% 85,5% 87,9%

    

As of the end of the reporti ng period

Total assets 36 403 432 34 208 389 28 713 786

Financial investments 17 118 316 17 191 958 15 896 949

   

Effi  ciency indicators

Technical result 534 749 1 598 808 1 299 492

Investment result 144 171 141 014 410 379

Profi t for the year 486 515 1 558 082 1 342 651

Annual return on equity 3,3% 10,6% 9,5%

Annual return on investments 0,8% 0,9% 2,5%

Explanati ons on fi nancial indicators:   
 
Gross claims incurred    Total claims amount + change in provision 
      for claims outstanding 

Net operati ng expenses     Operati ng expenses – service and commission fees

Net loss rati o     Claims incurred, net of reinsurance/premiums earned,
      net of reinsurance

Net expense rati o    Net operati ng expenses (except for fi nancial expenses
      and other expenses) / premiums earned, net of reinsurance 

Net combined rati o    Net loss rati o + net expense rati o 

Return on equity (ROE)    Profi t / start/end of year average equity for the period

Return on investments (ROI)   Investment result /start/end of year average investments 
      for the period

Main fi nancial indicators



14

Consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In euros Note 2015 2014 

  

REVENUE

Gross premiums 3 19 092 524 16 571 243

Reinsurance premiums 3 -6 648 620 -5 416 380

Changes in the provision for unearned premiums 3 -706 984 -225 912

Reinsurer’s share of the change in provision for unearned premiums 3 306 948 124 317

 

Premiums earned, net of reinsurance 3 12 043 868 11 053 268

    

Service and commission fee revenue 4 1 251 444 1 257 922

Net investment revenue 5 276 487 272 076

Other income 6 169 593 175 405

    

Total revenue  13 741 392 12 758 671

EXPENSES

Gross claims 7 -10 282 929 -8 729 921

Reinsurer’s share in claims 7 4 016 783 3 300 111

Change in the provision for claims outstanding 7 -1 626 354 -4 523 514

Reinsurer’s share of the change in the provision for claims outstanding 7 719 618 4 459 821

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 7 -7 172 882 -5 493 503

 

Acquisiti on costs 8 -4 381 219 -3 968 202

Administrati ve expenses 8 -1 343 460 -1 368 582

Financial expenses 8 -132 316 -131 062

Total operati ng expenses  -5 856 995 -5 467 846

Profi t before taxes  711 515 1 797 322

Tax on dividends paid 9 -225 000 -239 240

Profi t for the fi nancial year  486 515 1 558 082

Comprehensive income for the fi nancial year 486 515 1 558 082

Incl. profi t att ributable to shareholders of the parent company 469 060 1 543 609

Incl. profi t att ributable to non-controlling interests 17 455 14 473
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Consolidated statement 
of fi nancial positi on

In euros Note 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 11 1 281 989 1 445 601

Intangible assets/Deferred Acquisiti on Costs 12 1 844 976 1 887 641

Financial assets 13 17 118 316 17 191 958

Receivables under reinsurance contracts 14 11 209 793 10 175 856

Receivables from insurance acti viti es and other receivables 15 1 299 949 1 411 925

Cash and cash equivalents 16 3 648 409 2 095 408

TOTAL ASSETS 36 403 432 34 208 389

 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 3 200 000 3 200 000

Reserve capital 320 836 320 836

Other reserves 64 428 64 428

Retained earnings 10 179 781 9 601 629

Profi t for the fi nancial year 469 060 1 478 152

Total equity att ributable to shareholders of the parent company 14 234 105 14 665 045

Total equity att ributable to non-controlling interests 97 385 79 930

Total  equity 17 14 331 490 14 744 975

Liabiliti es under insurance contracts 20 19 038 720 16 705 382

Liabiliti es from reinsurance 21 1 415 363 1 123 115

Liabiliti es from direct insurance acti viti es 22 537 574 410 138

Accrued expenses and deferred revenue 23 1 080 285 1 224 779

Total liabiliti es 22 071 942 19 463 414

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 36 403 432 34 208 389
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Consolidated statement 
of changes in equity

In euros Share capital Reserve capital Other reserves Retained 
earnings

Non-con-
trolling interest Total

As of 31.12.2013 3 200 000 320 836 64 428 10 436 172 65 457 14 086 893

Profi t for the fi nancial year 0 0 0 1 543 609 14 473 1 558 082

Dividends paid 0 0 0 -900 000 0 -900 000

Total changes in equity for 
the year

0 0 0 643 609 14 473 658 082

As of 31.12.2014 3 200 000 320 836 64 428 11 079 781 79 930 14 744 975

Profi t for the fi nancial year 0 0 0 469 060 17 455 486 515

Dividends paid -900 000 0 -900 000

Total changes in equity for 
the year

0 0 0 -430 940 17 455 -413 485

As of 31.12.2015 3 200 000 320 836 64 428 10 648 841 97 385 14 331 490

See Note 17 for additi onal informati on about equity.
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Consolidated 
cash fl ow statement

In euros Notes 2015 2014 

Cash fl ow from operati ng acti viti es 2 854 118 1 078 723

Insurance premiums received 17 338 198 15 439 127

Claims paid and claims handling expenses -8 894 103 -8 049 553

Paid to reinsurers (net) -1 053 314 -347 506

Paid as operati ng expenses -4 781 297 -4 834 125

Acquisiti on of shares and other securiti es -877 069 -454 525

Disposal of shares and other securiti es 629 983 778 399

Acquired fi xed rate securiti es -2 157 550 -13 273 228

Proceeds from disposals of fi xed rate securiti es 2 289 908 8 589 552

Loans granted -65 700 -23 700

Repayments of loans granted 21 988 47 228

Investments in term deposits -95 000 -80 000

Return on term deposits 80 000 2 675 000

Interest received 490 724 697 537

Dividends received 15 610 9 413

Investment expenses paid -88 260 -94 896

Cash fl ow used in investi ng acti viti es  -176 117 -394 616

Acquisiti on of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets -262 698 -514 634

Disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 86 581 120 018

Cash fl ow used in fi nancing acti viti es  -1 125 000 -1 139 240

Dividends paid 17 -900 000 -900 000

Income tax paid 9 -225 000 -239 240

Total cash fl ow  1 553 001 -455 133

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  16 2 095 408 2 550 541

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  16 3 648 409 2 095 408
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Salva Kindlustuse AS (hereinaft er also referred to as 
the Company) is a non-life insurance company regis-
tered in Estonia. The consolidated fi nancial state-
ments prepared as of 31 December 2015 include 
the fi nancial informati on of Salva Kindlustuse AS, 
its 100% subsidiary Salva Kahjukäsitluse OÜ and its 
49% subsidiary Business Informati on Systems OÜ 
(jointly referred to as the Group). 

2.1. Basis of preparati on 
The consolidated fi nancial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Internati onal 
Financial Reporti ng Standards (IFRS) developed 
by the Internati onal Accounti ng Standards Board 
(IASB), and their interpretati ons, as adopted by 
the European Union (EU) and entered into force 
for the year 2015.

The consolidated fi nancial statements have 
been prepared in euros, unless explicitly stated 
otherwise. The fi nancial statements have been 
prepared on the basis of the acquisiti on cost prin-
ciple, except for fi nancial investments, and deriv-
ati ve fi nancial instruments which are measured 
at fair value. The companies of the Group have 
adopted common accounti ng principles, which 
are applied consistently for all periods referred to 
in the fi nancial statements. Summary of signifi cant 
accounti ng policies.

2.2. Summary of signifi cant 
accounti ng policies
The accounti ng principles set out below have been 
consistently used for all periods presented in these 
consolidated fi nancial statements.

The management board approved the issuance 
of the fi nancial statements with its resoluti on of 
17 March 2016. Shareholders have the right to 
decline the Annual Report prepared and submitt ed 
by the Management Board, and demand prepara-
ti on of a new Annual Report.

(a) Functi onal currency. Transacti ons and entries 
denominated in foreign currency

The functi onal and presentati on currency of the 
group is the euro.

Foreign currency transacti ons are recorded on the 
basis of the foreign currency exchange rates of the 
European Central Bank offi  cially valid on the trans-
acti on date. Monetary assets and liabiliti es denom-
inated in foreign currency in the fi nancial state-
ments are translated on the basis of the foreign 
currency exchange rates of the European Central 
Bank offi  cially valid on the balance sheet date. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses are recorded 
under revenue and expenses in the statement of 
comprehensive income of the reporti ng period.

(b) Basis of consolidati on
Consolidated fi nancial statements include the 
fi nancial data of subsidiaries controlled by the 
parent company. Control exists when Salva Kind-
lustuse AS is exposed, or has rights to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to aff ect those returns through its 
power over the investee.

1. General informati on on the company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounti ng esti mates and 
assumpti ons used in the preparati on 
of the fi nancial statements
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Control is presumed to exist, if the parent company 
holds over 50% of the voti ng shares of the subsid-
iary, or is otherwise able to control the operati ng 
or fi nancial policies of the subsidiary.

Business Informati on Systems OÜ is recorded in 
the consolidated fi nancial statements as a subsid-
iary, as the parent company (Salva Kindlustuse AS) 
has rights that give it power over the acti viti es of 
BIS that signifi cantly aff ect the returns of BIS OÜ.

In the consolidated fi nancial statements, any 
transacti ons between group companies, as well as 
mutual balances and unrealised profi t, have been 
eliminated. 

Subsidiaries prepare fi nancial statements on the 
same period, materially using the same accounti ng 
principles.

Supplementary disclosures on the parent enti ty of 
the group

Pursuant to the Accounti ng Act of the Republic 
of Estonia, the notes to the consolidated fi nan-
cial statements of the consolidati ng enti ty shall 
contain the main statements of the consolidati ng 
enti ty. The parent company’s main fi nancial 
statements have been prepared using the same 
accounti ng principles and basis of esti mati ons 
used in preparing the consolidated fi nancial state-
ments.

The basis for accounti ng for subsidiaries in the 
parent enti ty’s unconsolidated statement of fi nan-
cial positi on have been provided in subsecti on (d) 
of Note 2.4.

(c) Insurance contracts

A non-life insurance contract is a contract under 
which the insurer underwrites a considerable 
insurance risk of the other party (the policyholder 
or the insured) in order to pay the policyholder 
or the insured person an indemnity, should the 
insured event occur. An insured risk is diff erent 
from a fi nancial risk. Financial risk is a risk, where 
subsequent changes in one or several of the 
following items can occur: established interest 
rate, price of a security, consumer prices, currency 
exchange rates, price index, credit rati ng or credit 
index, or another variable, where in the case of a 

non-fi nancial variable the variable is not inherent 
in the party to the contract. Insurance contracts 
may also involve some fi nancial risk.

Insurance contracts are generally concluded for a 
period of one year.

(d) Recording and assessment of insurance 
contracts

Insurance premiums

Gross insurance premiums are recognised at 
the earlier of the date that the insurance cover 
commences or the date the premiums are 
invoiced for insurance cover commencing in the 
future reporti ng periods. Insurance premiums 
for contracts or instalments whose coverage 
period commences aft er the balance sheet date 
are recorded in the balance sheet as unearned 
premiums.

Reinsurance premiums are the share of gross 
premium under reinsurance contracts which is 
transferred or is subject to transfer to a reinsurer.

A reinsurance premium shall be deemed fully 
received upon expiry of the insurance cover. 
Premiums which are earned aft er the reporti ng 
date are recorded in the balance sheet under 
provision for unearned premiums. 

Provision for unearned premiums

The provision for unearned premiums is formed 
to pay any expenses arising from insured events 
covered by eff ecti ve insurance contracts, which 
have not occurred by the balance sheet date, 
as well as to cover any expenses associated with 
contract management. The provision for unearned 
premiums represents the share of gross premiums 
which is likely to be earned over the rest of the 
insurance cover period. The reserve is calculated 
separately for each insurance contract and addi-
ti onal contracts on the basis of gross premiums, 
applying the pro rata method.

The provision for unearned premiums is recorded 
on the statement of fi nancial positi on line “Liabili-
ti es under insurance contracts”.

The reinsurer’s share of the provision for unearned 
premiums equals the same percentage of the 
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provision for unearned premiums, as the pro rata 
share of the reinsurance premiums of the gross 
premiums. The reinsurer’s share of the provision 
for unearned premiums has been recorded on the 
statement of fi nancial positi on line “Receivables 
under reinsurance contracts”.

(e) Claims

Expenses incurred in the insurance business 
consist of claims paid during the reporti ng period, 
adjustment expenses, recoveries received and 
receivable, and changes in outstanding claims 
reserves.

The reinsurance share of the claims expense is 
the extent of the reinsurer’s liability within that 
expense, and which arises from the terms and 
conditi ons of the reinsurance contract.

Provision for claims outstanding

The provision for claims outstanding is formed to 
cover losses and handling expenses which have 
already been incurred but are outstanding as at 
the balance sheet date.

The outstanding claims reserve includes:
• handled but outstanding losses;
• reported and registered losses which have not 

been fully sett led (RBNS);
• Losses which have been incurred but not yet 

reported (IBNR).

Outstanding claims are assessed by analysing each 
claim separately, considering the incurred and not 
yet reported losses, and the impact of both internal 
and external predictable events (e.g. changes in 
handling proceedings, infl ati on, legal develop-
ment tendencies, and legislati ve amendments, as 
well as past experience and trends). The provision 
for claims outstanding includes claims handling 
expenses.

The RBNS is esti mated in the course of the claims 
handling process separately for each individual loss 
fi le, on the basis of the informati on available to the 
claims handler. If no informati on is available, esti -
mates based on previous experience will be used. 
RBNS is terminated by full processing of the claim.

IBNR is calculated at the end of each accounti ng 
period on such losses which are likely to have been 

already incurred but have not yet been reported 
to us. The IBNR calculati on methods are based on 
historical stati sti cs, and the actuarial esti mates 
based on the analysis of historical data.

Provisions for claims outstanding are not 
discounted, except for the motor third party liability 
annuity reserves, which are discounted into the 
discounted value using standard actuarial methods, 
and the reti rement pension increase index and the 
discount rate recommended by the Motor Third 
Party Liability Insurance Guarantee Fund.

The esti mated amounts received from reinsur-
ance, sale of salvages and recoveries are recorded 
as separate assets and the provision for claims 
outstanding is not reduced by these amounts. Any 
amounts received from reinsurance, and other 
recoverable amounts are assessed in the same way 
as outstanding claims.

The provision for claims outstanding is recorded on 
the statement of fi nancial positi on line “Liabiliti es 
under insurance contracts”.

(f) Reinsurance

The Group purchases reinsurance cover in the 
course of normal business operati ons, in order 
to limit potenti al net losses by diversifying risks. 
Reinsurance premiums and claims received are 
recorded in the consolidated statement of compre-
hensive income and the statement of fi nancial 
positi on separately from the corresponding insur-
ance contracts, since no reinsurance agreements 
relieve the Group from its direct liabiliti es to the 
policyholders.

Only the contracts which represent considerable 
transfer of a risk insured are recorded as reinsur-
ance contracts. Contractual rights which do not 
represent transferring of a considerable part of a 
risk are recorded as fi nancial instruments.

Reinsurance premiums paid are recorded as 
expenses applying the same principle that was 
applied to recording of contractual insurance 
premiums as revenue.

Reinsurer’s assets

Amounts receivable under reinsurance contracts 
to cover any claims and the reinsurer’s share of 
the technical reserve which are outstanding on 
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the reporti ng date, are recorded in the statement 
of fi nancial positi on as reinsurer’s assets.

The value of the reinsurer’s assets is measured on 
every balance sheet date. Any impairment of rein-
surance assets are recorded in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

Liabiliti es from reinsurance

Liabiliti es from reinsurance include amounts 
payable to reinsurers under reinsurance contracts.

Liabiliti es from reinsurance also comprise the rein-
surance rati o of the acquisiti on costs, the calcula-
ti on principles of which are set forth in subsecti on 
(g), and the reinsurer’s share of the recoveries and 
salvages (see subsecti on (b) of Note 2.4).

(g) Deferred acquisiti on costs and 
the reinsurance share

Acquisiti on costs that are directly associated with 
the premiums carried forward to the subsequent 
reporti ng period are capitalised and are disclosed 
on the Statement of fi nancial positi on as Intan-
gible assets. The calculati ons of such deferred 
acquisiti on costs are based on gross premiums 
and expenses according to type. The percentage 
share of the deferred acquisiti on costs in the 
direct acquisiti on costs equals the percentage 
share of the total amount of prepaid premiums of 
the aggregate gross premiums amount.

The reinsurance share of the deferred acquisi-
ti on costs forms the same percentage share of 
the commission fees deriving from reinsurance 
contracts, as the reinsurance rati o of the provision 
for unearned premiums forms of the reinsurance 
premiums. The calculati ons are based on the rein-
surer’s share of the premiums by insurance years, 
and the commission fees deriving from reinsur-
ance contracts by types.

(h) Liabiliti es and adequacy of committ ed 
assets test 

The adequacy of insurance liabiliti es is tested 
on the reporti ng date, using current esti mates 
pertaining to future cash fl ows of the insurance 
contracts. If an esti mate shows that the book 
value of insurance liabiliti es minus deferred acqui-

siti on costs and intangible assets is inadequate 
with respect to future cash fl ows, the enti re defi cit 
shall be recorded in the balance sheet as a change 
in deferred acquisiti on costs. A provision against 
outstanding risks is established to cover the diff er-
ence.

The test conducted for 2015 indicated no defi cit.

(i) Revenue 

Insurance premium revenue

The principles of recording of insurance premium 
revenue are described in subsecti on (d).

Revenue from service and commission fees 

The revenue from service and commission fees 
is inclusive of reinsurance commission fees and 
other service fees and revenue associated with 
conclusion of insurance contracts. These service 
fees and revenue are charged to income in the 
period of provision of the services. If the services 
are to be rendered in future periods, the services 
are recognised in these future periods based on 
the cut-off  principle.

Reinsurance commission fee revenue represents 
the commission fee receivable from a reinsurer 
under a reinsurance contract, including commis-
sion fees stemming from the parti cipati on of 
the reinsurer in the reinsurer’s profi t. Reinsur-
ance contracts’ commission fees are recorded by 
applying the same principles as those applied to 
the acquisiti on costs of insurance contracts (see 
subsecti on (g) of the accounti ng principles). The 
fee for parti cipati ng in the profi t of a reinsurer is 
recorded on the accrual basis.

Investment revenues

Revenue from fi nancial investments includes 
interest and dividend revenue, net gain/loss from 
revaluati on of fi nancial assets and liabiliti es meas-
ured at fair value through profi t and loss and real-
ised gains and losses on realisati on of investments.

Interest revenue earned from loans granted is 
recorded using the eff ecti ve interest rate. Revenue 
from dividends is recognised when the right to 
receive the payment is established.
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(j) Expenses

Claims incurred

The accounti ng principles applied for recording 
claims incurred have been described in subsec-
ti on (e).

Claims handling expenses

Claims handling expenses include direct payroll 
expenses, expert fees and service fees directly 
associated with adjustment of losses. Claims 
handling expenses are recorded in the statement 
of comprehensive income as a part of losses 
incurred.

Administrati ve expenses

Administrati ve expenses are expenses which are 
associated with collecti on of premiums, portf olio 
management and reinsurance. Administrati ve 
expenses also represent expenses which are borne 
in the interest of the undertaking as a whole, 
which are not taken into considerati on when 
calculati ng the underwriti ng result, and which do 
not form a part of the investment costs. These 
expenses include fees and compensati on paid to 
auditors, experts, legal and tax consultants, super-
visory fees, and membership fees paid to diff erent 
associati ons.  

Acquisiti on costs

Based on their nature, acquisiti on costs are divided 
into direct and indirect acquisiti on costs. Direct 
acquisiti on costs include costs which arise from 
the conclusion of insurance contracts, including 
commission fees to brokers and variable payroll 
expenses of the sales and insurance departments. 
Indirect acquisiti on costs are fi xed costs, including 
fi xed payroll expenses of the sales and insurance 
departments, adverti sing costs, business travel 
costs, amorti sati on of fi xed assets, printi ng, trans-
port and communicati on expenses, and other 
expenses to the extent that they are not a part of 
administrati ve expenses, loss (claims) handling 
costs or investment costs.

Acquisiti on costs are adjusted in the statement of 
comprehensive income by changes in the deferred 
acquisiti on costs of net reinsurance (g).

Financial expenses

Financial expenses represent payroll expenses 
associated with investment acti viti es, commis-
sion fees to investment management companies, 
transacti on expenses related to acquisiti on of 
fi nancial assets, and other expenses associated 
with investment acti viti es. 

(k) Income tax

Pursuant to the applicable laws, Estonian compa-
nies are not subjected to pay income tax on the 
profi t. Starti ng from 2015 the established tax rate is 
20/80 of the net dividend paid (earlier 21/79).

Therefore, all temporary diff erences between the 
tax basis and carrying values of assets and liabili-
ti es cease to exist. Rather than being subjected to 
income tax on the profi t, Estonian companies are 
subjected to income tax on the dividends paid from 
retained earnings. Corporate income tax on the 
payment of dividends is recorded under income tax 
expense in the statement of comprehensive income 
at the moment of announcing the dividends, irre-
specti ve of the period for which the dividends were 
announced or when the dividends are actually paid.

Taxes on cross-border portf olio are calculated in 
accordance with the tax rules in each country. In 
Belgium our intermediary is acti ng as the fi scal 
representati ve for the business which they write on 
our behalf in Belgium.

The maximum possible income tax liability related 
to dividend payment is disclosed in Note 25.

(l) Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) 

An item of PPE is carried in the statement of 
fi nancial positi on at its cost, less accumulated 
depreciati on and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Essenti al asset items which are used for 
the Group’s own enterprise and have a useful life 
exceeding one year are recorded as fi xed assets.

The acquisiti on cost of property, plant and equip-
ment consists of the purchase price paid and other 
direct expenses and esti mated subsequent expendi-
tures that are required to keep the asset in a proper 
working order, or to replace its parts. In order to 
establish the depreciati on rates of property, plant 
and equipment, the useful life of the essenti al parts 
of the asset item are assessed individually.
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Depreciati on of fi xed assets is calculated on the 
acquisiti on cost based on the straight-line method, 
in accordance with the esti mated useful life of the 
asset item. Calculati on of depreciati on starts from 
the month when the asset is taken into use. Calcu-
lati on of depreciati on is suspended when the item 
is either classifi ed as “non-current assets held for 
sale” or derecognised.

Average useful lives by individual asset groups:
Buildings     25 years
Furniture and Fitti  ngs   3-5 years
Hardware    3 years
Means of transport   5 years

Land and works of art are not depreciated.

The depreciati on periods assigned to PPE shall be 
reviewed in the case of circumstances that may 
signifi cantly change the useful life of the non-cur-
rent asset item or group. The eff ect of changes 
in evaluati ons is recorded during the reporti ng 
period and the subsequent periods.

Subsequent expenses associated with PPE are 
added to the book value of the assets when it is 
likely that this could generate economic benefi ts 
in the future. Other costs incurred with the aim of 
retaining the item’s ability to generate profi t are 
charged to the expenses of the period.

In the case of impairment of PPE, the item in ques-
ti on is discounted to its recoverable amount. If 
the value of the asset item has increased again, 
the expense generated by the impairment will be 
cancelled.

(m) Intangible assets 

Deferred acquisiti on costs

The principles applied to calculati ng acquisiti on 
costs have been provided in subsecti on (g).

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are recorded at their 
acquisiti on cost, consisti ng of the purchase price 
and expenses directly related to the acquisiti on. 
Subsequent recogniti on depends on whether the 
asset has a defi nite or indefi nite useful life.

Intangible assets with a defi nite useful life are 
recorded in the statement of fi nancial positi on at 
their acquisiti on cost, less accumulated deprecia-
ti on and any accumulated impairment losses.

Licenses and other contractual rights acquired for 
a cost, including computer soft ware, are recorded 
in the statement of fi nancial positi on as intangible 
assets with a defi nite useful life.

Such assets are depreciated by applying the 
straight-line method during their esti mated useful 
life, which is up to ten years, and the depreciati on 
is based on the assumpti on that the fi nal value of 
the asset is zero. 

The depreciati on periods assigned to intangible 
assets shall be reviewed in the case of circum-
stances that may signifi cantly change the useful 
life of the non-current asset item or group. The 
eff ect of changes in evaluati ons is recorded during 
the reporti ng period and subsequent periods.

In the case of impairment of intangible assets, 
the item in questi on is discounted to its recover-
able amount. If the value of the asset item has 
increased again, the expense generated by the 
impairment will be cancelled. 

Discounts are recorded in the statement of 
comprehensive income as expenses of the period, 
as a part of acquisiti on, administrati ve and claims 
handling expenses.

Internally developed intangible fi xed assets are 
recognised in the statement of fi nancial positi on 
at the amount which corresponds to that of the 
internal labour costs and investments in external 
development costs. Sales gains are amorti sed over 
the life of the same acquired asset.

The Group does not have any intangible assets 
with an indefi nite useful life.

(n) Grants

Grants related to operati ng expenses

Grants received to cover operati ng expenses are 
recognised in proporti on with the related oper-
ati ng expenses. Government grants are accom-
panied by conti ngent obligati ons and therefore 
are recorded as prepaid income and are not 
recorded in revenue. The gross method is applied 
for recording income, i.e. the grant received 
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and the expenses to be covered are recorded in 
diff erent capti ons of the statement of comprehen-
sive income. Income related to grants is recorded 
under “Other income” in the statement of compre-
hensive income. 

(o) Accounti ng for leases

Lease transacti ons, where all material risks and 
rewards related to the ownership of the asset are 
transferred to the lessee, are treated as fi nance 
leases. All other lease transacti ons are treated as 
operati ng leases.

The Group had no property leased under fi nance 
lease terms in the reporti ng period.

Company as the lessor

Assets leased out under operati ng lease are 
recorded in the balance sheet pursuant to standard 
procedure, similarly to other assets recorded in 
the balance sheet. Operati ng lease payments are 
recorded during the rental period as income based 
on the straight-line method.

Company as the lessee

Operati ng lease payments are recorded during the 
rental period as expenses based on the straight-
line method. Rental revenue is recorded under 
income over the term of lease based on the 
straight-line method.

(p) Financial instruments – initi al recogniti on and 
subsequent measurement

A fi nancial instrument is any contract that gives 
rise to a fi nancial asset of one enti ty and a fi nan-
cial liability or equity instrument of another enti ty.

Financial assets

Initi al recogniti on and measurement 

Financial assets are classifi ed as follows, depending 
on the purpose of their acquisiti on:
- fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and 

loss (including derivati ves);
- fi nancial assets held to maturity;
- loans and other receivables;
- available-for-sale fi nancial assets.

All fi nancial assets are recognised initi ally at fair 
value plus, in the case of fi nancial assets not desig-
nated at fair value through profi t or loss, transac-
ti on costs that are att ributable to the acquisiti on 
of the fi nancial assets. Acquisiti on and disposal of 
fi nancial assets are recorded on the trade date, i.e. 
at the ti me when the Group incurs the obligati on 
to acquire or dispose the assets.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement fi nan-
cial assets are classifi ed in four categories: 
- fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and 

loss (including derivati ves);
- fi nancial assets held to maturity;
- loans and other receivables;
- available-for-sale fi nancial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profi t and 
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profi t and 
loss are fi nancial assets acquired for trading, or 
assigned to this category by the Group from the 
very beginning. These include bonds, shares, 
derivati ves and other securiti es which are held for 
trading or which are not intended to be held to 
maturity.

Financial assets are classifi ed as “fi nancial assets 
recorded at fair value through profi t and loss” on 
the basis of the following criteria:
• assets held for trading;
• assets classifi ed as such, since this provides 

more relevant fi nancial informati on. 

Financial assets which are not held for trading may 
be classifi ed under this group if
• this serves the purpose of eliminati ng any 

diff erences in the recogniti on of income and 
expenses arising from measurement of assets 
and the related liabiliti es – i.e. helps to reduce 
the so-called accounti ng discrepancy; 

• or the group of fi nancial assets is managed 
together, and the results designated at fair 
value in accordance with documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and the 
corresponding informati on is forwarded to the 
top management.

Realised gains and losses, and unrealised gains 
and losses stemming from changes in fair value 
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of fi nancial investments designated at fair value 
through profi t and loss are recorded in the state-
ment of comprehensive income pertaining to the 
period of their emergence. Derivati ve transacti ons 
are recorded in the statement of fi nancial positi on 
at fair value; contracts with a positi ve value are 
reported as assets and those with a negati ve value 
as liabiliti es. Any gains and losses stemming from 
the change in derivati ve values are recorded in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivati ve fi nancial 
assets with fi xed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an acti ve market. These include 
loans, accounts receivable and term deposits. 
These assets are initi ally recognised at cost. Subse-
quent to initi al recogniti on, the assets are desig-
nated at amorti sed cost on the basis of the eff ecti ve 
interest rate method, less any accumulated impair-
ment losses. The receivables are assessed on an 
individual basis. Doubtf ul receivables are charged 
to expenses. Gains and losses from changes in the 
value of loans and receivables are recorded in the 
comprehensive income statement. 

Held-to-maturity investments 

“Financial assets held to maturity” means fi nancial 
assets with established or establishable payments 
and establishable maturiti es, if the Group intends 
and is capable of holding such assets unti l their 
maturity. These fi nancial assets are initi ally 
recognised at cost, plus transacti on costs directly 
related to the acquisiti on. Subsequent to initi al 
recogniti on, fi nancial assets intended to be held 
to maturity are measured at amorti sed cost on the 
basis of the eff ecti ve interest rate method, less 
any accumulated impairment losses. Gains and 
losses from changes in the value of fi nancial assets 
held-to-maturity are recorded in the statement of 
comprehensive income. The Group had no such 
assets in the reporti ng period.

Financial assets available for sale 

Financial assets available for sale are fi nancial 
assets classifi ed as such, or fi nancial assets which 
have not been categorised under other classes of 
fi nancial assets. The Group had no such assets in 
the reporti ng period.

Derecogniti on of fi nancial assets 

The derecogniti on of fi nancial assets will take place 
when the contractual rights on the cash fl ows from 
the investments expire, or when the investments, 
together with all material risks and rewards asso-
ciated with the ownership, have been transferred. 

(q) Fair value

Shares and investment fund units are designated 
at fair value through profi t and loss from initi al 
recogniti on. The price of the securiti es is based 
on the price that would be received to sell an 
asset in an orderly transacti on between market 
parti cipants at the measurement date on the 
main markets. We rely on Bloomberg CBBT quota-
ti ons, which is taking into account, if possible, at 
least three of the major dealer quotati ons for one 
credit instrument. If the fi nancial assets market 
is not acti ve, the Group shall apply other valua-
ti on methods to establish the fair value. These 
include recent market transacti ons concluded by 
independent parti es, references to other similar 
instruments, and discounted cash fl ow analysis 
and opti on valuati on models.

The esti mated fair value of fi xed interest bearing 
deposits is based on discounted cash fl ows using 
prevailing money market interest rates for debts 
with similar credit risk and maturity. The value of 
using above-menti oned method does not signifi -
cantly diff er from the value measured at amor-
ti sed cost.

The designati on of fi nancial assets measured at 
fair value through profi t and loss in accordance 
with IFRS 13 has been presented in Note 13.5.

Level 1 includes fi nancial assets traded in acti ve 
markets, with the inputs based on quoted prices in 
acti ve markets for identi cal assets that the enti ty 
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 includes fi nancial assets traded in the free 
market, with the inputs based on prices that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly.

Level 3 includes fi nancial assets not traded in the 
market, with the inputs not directly observable on 
money and capital market data.
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(r) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly 
liquid investments which are readily converti ble 
into known amounts of cash and which include 
no signifi cant risk of changes in value, including 
cash in hand and cash at bank, as well as demand 
deposits. The cash fl ow statement has been 
prepared based on the direct method. 

(s) Impairment of asset value

The Company’s management assesses the circum-
stances referring to the need to impair assets or 
any group of assets on each balance sheet date. If 
there are indicators that could refer to the reduc-
ti on of the value of an individual asset item below 
its book value, a recoverable amount test is carried 
out. The recoverable amount of an asset item is 
equal to the higher of the fair value of the asset 
(less sales costs) or the value in use, calculated 
based on the discounted cash fl ows. If the test 
reveals that the recoverable amount of the asset 
item is lower than its carrying amount, the item 
will be writt en down to its recoverable amount. 
If the impairment test cannot be conducted on 
a single asset item, the recoverable amount will 
be determined for the smallest group of assets 
(money generati ng unit) where the asset item 
belongs. The amount of impairment is charged to 
the expenses of the period.

If the test conducted in order to ascertain the 
recoverable amount of the asset item, which has 
been previously writt en down, reveals that the 
recoverable amount is higher than the net book 
value, the previous write-down will be annulled, 
and the balance sheet value of the asset item 
increased. The upper limit is the net book value of 
the asset, considering normal depreciati on.

(t)  Receivables from insurance business 
and other receivables

Receivables from policyholders and other 
outstanding receivables are reported as receiv-
ables at the end of the period. The statement of 
fi nancial positi on reports the receivables at amor-
ti sed cost, i.e. less doubtf ul and uncollecti ble 
receivables. The receivables are assessed on an 
individual basis. Doubtf ul receivables are charged 
to expenses.

(u) Liabiliti es from direct insurance business 

Policyholders’ prepayments and liabiliti es before 
brokers, outstanding on the reporti ng date, are 
reported as liabiliti es. Liabiliti es are reported at 
amorti sed cost.

(v) Provisions and conti ngent liabiliti es

The Company establishes provisions for liabili-
ti es, the ti me of realisati on or amount of which 
cannot be reliably measured. The evaluati on of 
the amount of the provision and esti mati on of the 
ti me of realisati on is based on the esti mates of the 
Management Board or experts in the relevant fi eld.

Provisions are recognised when the company has 
a present obligati on (legal or constructi ve) as a 
result of a past event; it is probable that an outf low 
of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be 
required to sett le the obligati on; and the amount 
of obligati on can be reliably determined.

Expenses incurred upon realisati on of the provi-
sion are measured as of the balance sheet date, 
and the amount of the provision measured on 
each balance sheet date. If the provision is likely 
to be realised in a period longer than one year, 
the provision will be recognised at discounted net 
present value. The discount rate is established on 
the basis of the current market interest rate for 
similar liabiliti es.

Commitments which only have a lower than 
50% probability of becoming liabiliti es, or the 
amount of which cannot be reliably determined, 
are disclosed as conti ngent liabiliti es. Conti ngent 
liabiliti es are accounted for off -balance sheet.

(x) Events aft er the balance sheet date

Material circumstances that have an eff ect 
on the valuati on of assets and liabiliti es and 
became evident between the balance sheet date 
(31.12.2015) and the date of the signature of the 
fi nancial statements, but are related to transacti ons 
that took place in the reporti ng period or earlier 
periods, are recorded in the fi nancial statements.

There were no subsequent events that have not 
been taken into considerati on when evaluati ng 
the assets and liabiliti es but have a material eff ect 
on the result of the next fi nancial year and that 
should be disclosed in the fi nancial statements.
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2.3. Changes in accounti ng 
policies
New Internati onal Financial Reporti ng Standards 
(IFRS, EU) and interpretati ons of the Internati onal 
Financial Reporti ng Interpretati ons Committ ee 
(IFRIC)

As of the preparati on of this Annual Report, new 
IFRS (EU) standards and their interpretati ons had 
been issued or revised, becoming mandatory for 
the Company starti ng from fi nancial years begin-
ning on or aft er 1 January 2015. 

a) Adopti on of new and/or changed IFRS (EU) and 
Internati onal Financial Reporti ng Interpretati ons 
Committ ee (IFRIC) interpretati ons

The following new and/or amended IFRSs have 
been adopted by the Group as of 1 January 2015:
• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 

Cycle
• IFRIC Interpretati on 21: Levies

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle 
is a collecti on of amendments to the following 
IFRSs: 
• IFRS 3 Business Combinati ons
• IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement
• IAS 40 Investment property

IFRIC Interpretati on 21 Levies 

This interpretati on addresses the accounti ng for 
levies imposed by governments. Liability to pay a 
levy is recognised in the fi nancial statements when 
the acti vity that triggers the payment of the levy 
occurs. The implementati on of this standard had 
no eff ect on the fi nancial statements of the Group.

b) New IFRS (EU) standards and interpretati ons 
issued but not yet eff ecti ve and not early adopted 

The Group has not applied the following IFRSs and 
IFRIC Interpretati ons that have been issued but 
are not yet eff ecti ve:

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentati on of fi nancial 
statements: Disclosure Initi ati ve (eff ecti ve for 
fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2016 once endorsed by the EU).

The amendments aim at clarifying IAS 1 to address 
perceived impediments to preparers exercising 
their judgment in presenti ng their fi nancial 
reports. The Group has not evaluated the impact 
of the implementati on of this standard.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equip-
ment and IAS 38 Intangible assets: Clarifi cati on of 
Acceptable Methods of Depreciati on and Amorti -
sati on (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or 
aft er 1 January 2016).

The amendment provides additi onal guidance on 
how the depreciati on or amorti sati on of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets should 
be calculated. It is clarifi ed that a revenue-based 
method is not considered to be an appropriate 
manifestati on of consumpti on. The implementa-
ti on of this amendment will not have any impact 
on the fi nancial statements of the Group, as the 
Group does not use revenue-based depreciati on 
and amorti sati on methods.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefi ts (eff ec-
ti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 
February 2015).

The amendments address accounti ng for the 
employee contributi ons to a defi ned benefi t plan. 
Since the Group’s employees do not make such 
contributi ons, the implementati on of this amend-
ment will not have any impact on the fi nancial 
statements of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate 
fi nancial statements (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years 
beginning on or aft er 1 January 2016).

The amendments reinstate the equity method as 
an accounti ng opti on for investments in subsidi-
aries, joint ventures and associates in an enti ty’s 
separate fi nancial statements. The Group has not 
yet evaluated the impact of the implementati on of 
this amendment.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: 
Disclosure Initi ati ve (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years 
beginning on or aft er 1 January 2017, once 
endorsed by the EU).

The amendments improve informati on provided 
to users of fi nancial statements about an enti -
ty’s fi nancing acti viti es. Enti ti es are required to 
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disclose changes in liabiliti es arising from fi nancing 
acti viti es, including both changes arising from 
cash fl ows and non-cash changes, for example, 
by providing reconciliati on between the opening 
and closing balances in the statement of fi nancial 
positi on for liabiliti es arising from fi nancing acti v-
iti es. The implementati on of these amendments 
will not have any impact on the fi nancial positi on 
or performance of the Group but may result in 
changes in disclosures.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (eff ecti ve for fi nan-
cial years beginning on or aft er 1 January 2018, 
once endorsed by the EU).

IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 and will have eff ect on 
the classifi cati on and measurement framework 
for fi nancial assets, impairment of fi nancial assets 
and hedge accounti ng. The Group has not yet eval-
uated the impact of the implementati on of this 
standard.

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements: 
Accounti ng for Acquisiti ons of Interests in Joint 
Operati ons (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years beginning 
on or aft er 1 January 2016).

IFRS 11 addresses the accounti ng for interests in 
joint ventures and joint operati ons. The amend-
ment adds new guidance on how to account for 
the acquisiti on of an interest in a joint operati on 
that consti tutes a business in accordance with 
IFRS and specifi es the appropriate accounti ng 
treatment for such acquisiti ons. The implementa-
ti on of this amendment will not have any impact 
on the fi nancial statements of the Group, as the 
Group does not have such acti viti es.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recogni-
ti on of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 
(eff ecti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 
1 January 2017, once endorsed by the EU).

The amendments clarify how to account for 
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on debt 
instruments measured at fair value. The Group has 
not yet evaluated the impact of the implementa-
ti on of this standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - 
Investment Enti ti es: Applying the consolidati on 
excepti on (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years beginning 
on or aft er 1 January 2016, once endorsed by the 
EU).

The amendments address issues that have arisen 
in the context of applying the consolidati on excep-
ti on for investment enti ti es. The implementati on 
of this amendment will not have any impact on 
the fi nancial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 – Sale or 
Contributi on of Assets between an Investor and 
its Associate or Joint Venture (EU endorsement 
deferred indefi nitely).

The amendments address an acknowledged incon-
sistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and 
those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contri-
buti on of assets between an investor and its asso-
ciate or joint venture. The main consequence of 
the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recog-
nised when a transacti on involves a business and 
parti al gain or loss is recognised when a transac-
ti on involves assets that do not consti tute a busi-
ness. The Group has not yet evaluated the impact 
of the implementati on of these amendments.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (eff ecti ve 
for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2016, once endorsed by the EU).

IFRS 14 provides fi rst-ti me adopters of IFRS with 
relief from derecognising rate-regulated assets 
and liabiliti es. However, to enhance compara-
bility with enti ti es that already apply IFRS and 
do not recognise such amounts, the standard 
requires that the eff ect of rate regulati on must be 
presented separately from other items. An enti ty 
that already presents IFRS fi nancial statements is 
not eligible to apply the standard.  The implemen-
tati on of this standard will not have any impact on 
the Group.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(eff ecti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 
1 January 2018, once endorsed by the EU).

IFRS 15 establishes a fi ve-step model that will 
apply to revenue earned from a contract with 
a customer, regardless of the type of revenue 
transacti on or the industry. Extensive disclosures 
will be required, including disaggregati on of total 
revenue; informati on about performance obli-
gati ons; changes in contract asset and liability 
account balances between periods and key judg-
ments and esti mates. The implementati on of this 
standard will not have any impact on the Group.
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The adopti on of these amendments may result in 
changes to accounti ng policies or disclosures but 
will not have any signifi cant impact on the fi nan-
cial positi on or performance of the Group. The 
Group plans to adopt the above menti oned stand-
ards and interpretati ons on their eff ecti veness 
date provided they are endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 16 Leases (eff ecti ve for fi nancial years begin-
ning on or aft er 1 January 2019, once endorsed by 
the EU).

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 and specifi es how to 
recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. 
The standard provides a single lessee accounti ng 
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and 
liabiliti es for all leases unless the lease term is 
12 months or less or the underlying asset has 
a low value. Lessor accounti ng is substanti ally 
unchanged. The adopti on of these amendments 
may result in changes to accounti ng policies or 
disclosures but will not have any signifi cant impact 
on the fi nancial positi on or performance of the 
Group. The Company plans to adopt the above 
menti oned standards and interpretati ons on their 
eff ecti veness date provided they are endorsed by 
the EU.

Improvements to IFRSs

In December 2013 IASB issued the Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle (eff ec-
ti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 
February 2015):

• IFRS 2 Share-based Payment;
• IFRS 3 Business Combinati ons;
• IFRS 8 Operati ng Segments;
• IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement;
• IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
• IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
• IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

In September 2014 IASB issued the Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle (eff ec-
ti ve for fi nancial years beginning on or aft er 1 
January 2016):

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Disconti nued Operati on;

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

• IAS 19 Employee Benefi ts;
• IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporti ng.

The adopti on of these amendments may result in 
changes to accounti ng policies or disclosures but 
will not have any impact on the fi nancial positi on 
or performance of the Group.

The Group plans to adopt the above menti oned 
standards and interpretati ons on their eff ecti ve-
ness date provided they are endorsed by the EU.

2.4. Signifi cant esti mates 
and assumpti ons

The preparati on of the consolidated fi nancial 
statements in accordance with Internati onal 
Financial Reporti ng Standards (EU) presumes 
presentati on of the management’s esti mates as 
well as resoluti ons and assumpti ons that may 
infl uence the balance of revenue, expenses, 
assets and liabiliti es as of the date of the fi nancial 
statements, and the presentati on of conti ngent 
assets and liabiliti es. The esti mates and assump-
ti on based thereon stem from the experiences of 
the preceding periods, and various other factors 
that are deemed reasonable in the current circum-
stances. On the basis of the results obtained, deci-
sions are made with respect to the book value of 
assets and liabiliti es, unless the value has become 
evident on the basis of other sources. Even though 
these esti mates are made to the management’s 
best knowledge, actual results may diff er from the 
esti mates.

The esti mates, and the assumpti ons providing the 
basis for the esti mates, are regularly reviewed. 
Any changes caused by the accounti ng esti mates 
are recorded in the data for the year when the esti -
mates were changed, provided that the changes 
pertained only to the parti cular reporti ng year. If 
these changes also pertain to subsequent periods, 
they shall be recorded both in the reporti ng period 
and the subsequent periods. 

The main esti mates and assumpti ons which are 
made in applying the accounti ng principles and 
have an eff ect on the assets and liabiliti es have 
been provided below.
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(a) Assessment of liabiliti es deriving from insur-
ance contracts 

The Group assesses the amount of losses which 
have been incurred and reported, and incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) by the balance sheet date.

The esti mati on of the provisions for losses which 
have been incurred but are not yet reported is 
based on the historical experience where the 
actual incurred losses of the previous periods have 
been applied to esti mate the future loss claim 
provisions. The esti mates and the changes of the 
preceding period are reviewed on every reporti ng 
date, with the provisions being revaluated. The 
changes are reported in the statement of compre-
hensive income.

The IBNR provision is established on the basis of 
stati sti cs involving the portf olio history, and the 
average amount of claims of the preceding years. 
The IBNR provision is calculated with respect to 
such classes of insurance as the motor third party 
liability insurance, motor own damage insurance, 
property insurance and travel insurance.

The RBNS provision is calculated on the case-by-
case basis in accordance with the available infor-
mati on and claim.

The provision for claims is not discounted, except 
for the motor third party liability pension which 
is calculated as annuiti es. Survival esti mates are 
based on the esti mates given in the mortality 
table, calculated on the basis of the data provided 
by the Estonian Stati sti cal Offi  ce for 2014 and esti -
mates in the gender-dependent mortality table 
calculated upon 2011 year populati on census. The 
esti mates on the consumer price index are based 
on esti mates unti l 2016 given by Eesti  Pank. In 
later years the rise of consumer price index is esti -
mated to be annually 2%. Risk-free interest rate is 
used for discounti ng provision for pension claims.

The handling expense rate included in the outstanding 
claims reserve is set on a case-by-case basis.

Motor third party liability, opti onal motor vehicle 
insurance and property insurance: 15% of the loss 
amount, a minimum of 64 euros and a maximum 
of 6 400 euros.

Handling expenses are not reported in the provi-
sion for other insurance classes, as the amount is 
insignifi cant.

Expected cash fl ows from potenti al liabiliti es 
stemming from insurance contracts, fi xed-term, in 
years:

thousand euros up to 1 1-4 5-10 11+ Total

Liabiliti es under insurance contracts 12 221 3 948 1 263 1 607 19 039

The expected cash fl ows from insurance contracts 
are evaluated using claims development history.

The accounti ng principles regarding liabiliti es 
under insurance contracts are disclosed in subsec-
ti ons (e) and (f) of Note 2.2.

As of the end of 2015, the technical reserve 
amounted to 19 039 thousand euros (2014: 16 
705 thousand euros).

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are initi ally measured at cost in 
the unconsolidated balance sheet of the parent 
company. The subsidiary is then measured at fair 
value in the balance sheet on each balance sheet 
date. Fair value is established using the discounted 
future cash fl ows from the subsidiary and assessing 
net asset value. The principal assumpti ons applied 
in valuati on future cash fl ows were the average 
cash fl ows on four previous years. Net asset value 
is the best assessment of the board. The discount 
rate applied to valuati on of the fair value of a 
subsidiary was 12%.
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3. Premiums earned, 
net of reinsurance

2015 

In euros  Gross 
premiums 

Changes in 
the provision 
for unearned 

premiums

Reinsurance 
premiums

Reinsurer’s share of 
the change in provi-
sion for unearned 

premiums

Premiums earned, 
net of reinsurance

Motor third party liability 
insurance

6 313 958 -381 720 -2 682 433 152 688 3 402 493

Property insurance 5 217 758 -320 139 -1 627 450 207 332 3 477 501

Motor vehicle insurance 3 960 599 53 129 -1 613 760 -35 075 2 364 893

Short-term health insurance 2 769 390 -71 835 -156 947 -4 605 2 536 003

Motor vehicle owner’s liability 439 261 8 414 -331 742 -6 739 109 194

Liability insurance 233 891 -5 229 -187 113 4 183 45 732

Monetary damage 114 178 1 874 -17 701 -2 274 96 077

Insurance of goods in transit 39 213 3 605 -30 664 -3 071 9 083

Railway rolling stock and small 
craft 

4 276 4 917 -810 -5 491 2 892

Total 19 092 524 -706 984 -6 648 620 306 948 12 043 868

2014 

In euros  Gross 
premiums 

Change in 
the provision 
for unearned 

premiums

Reinsurance 
premiums

Reinsurer’s share of 
the change in provi-
sion for unearned 

premiums

Premiums earned, 
net of reinsurance

Motor third party liability 
insurance

5 533 729 21 480 -2 325 961 -8 592 3 220 656

Property insurance 4 158 194 -115 269 -815 464 32 646 3 260 107

Motor vehicle insurance 3 861 886 -92 495 -1 582 341 52 962 2 240 012

Short-term health insurance 2 209 850 -24 906 -150 617 24 665 2 058 992

Motor vehicle owner’s liability 369 188 -22 280 -261 696 19 986 105 198

Liability insurance 222 323 -4 248 -177 858 3 399 43 616

Monetary damage 118 493 16 926 -22 707 -5 662 107 050

Insurance of goods in transit 52 560 -5 320 -44 496 5 138 7 882

Railway rolling stock and small 
craft 

45 020 200 -35 240 -225 9 755

Total 16 571 243 -225 912 -5 416 380 124 317 11 053 268
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In euros 2015 2014  

Dividend revenue 15 610 9 413

Interest income from deposits 1 372 11 186

Other fi nancial revenue, incl. interest revenue from loans granted 5 939 6 698

Trade portf olio revenue 253 566 241 950

Revenue from derivati ve instruments 0 2 829

Total 276 487 272 076

In euros Note 2015 2014  

Reinsurer commission revenue 10 1 242 590 1 358 080

Reinsurer's profi t sharing 10 1 503 2 690

Reinsurance share of changes in acquisiti on costs 10 7 229 -103 119

Other technical income, net of reinsurance 122 271

Total 1 251 444 1 257 922

4. Service and commission 
fee revenue

5. Net investment revenue

6. Other income  

In euros 2015 2014 

Other income 169 593 175 405

Total 169 593 175 405

Other income refl ects mostly profi t from the sales of fi xed assets and the revaluati on of currencies and 
rental income.
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7. Claims incurred, 
net of insurance

In euros Note 2015 2014

Claims paid, gross -9 705 318 -8 654 740

Claims handling expenses 8 -987 467 -976 791

Amounts received from recoveries and salvage 599 545 630 382

Esti mated amounts receivable for recoveries and salvage 189 689 271 228

Total claims, gross -10 282 929 -8 729 921

Change in the provision for claims outstanding -1 626 354 -4 523 514

Claims incurred, gross -11 909 283 -13 253 435

Reinsurer’s share in claims paid 10 4 016 783 3 300 111

Reinsurer’s share of the change in the provision for claims outstanding 10 719 618 4 459 821

Reinsurer’s share in claims incurred 4 736 401 7 759 932

 

Total claims incurred  -7 172 882 -5 493 503



34

SALVA KINDLUSTUSE AS
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

8. Operati ng expenses 

9. Tax on dividends paid 

In euros Note 2015 2014 

Claims handling expenses 7 -987 467 -976 791

Insurance contract acquisiti on expenses -4 381 219 -3 968 202

Administrati ve expenses -1 343 460 -1 368 582

  Incl. other expenses -136 998 -117 905

Financial expenses -132 316 -131 062

Total operati ng expenses -5 856 995 -5 467 846

Total expenses -6 844 462 -6 444 637

In euros 2015 2014

Payroll expenses -2 957 882 -3 005 774

Brokers’ commission fees -1 655 467 -1 225 233

Outsourced services -149 352 -122 874

Depreciati on and impairment of PPE and intangible assets -537 305 -483 673

Other operati ng expenses -1 642 343 -1 646 499

Change in deferred acquisiti on costs 97 887 39 416

Total expenses -6 844 462 -6 444 637

In euros 2015 2014

Tax on dividends paid -225 000 -239 240
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 In euros Land and buildings Other PPE Total

Acquisiti on cost 

31.12.2013 1 508 408 739 387 2 247 795

Acquisiti on 0 451 848 451 848

Disposal 0 -247 575 -247 575

Write-off 0 -7 601 -7 601

31.12.2014 1 508 408 936 059 2 444 467

Acquisiti on 0 69 627 69 627

Disposal 0 -126 633 -126 633

Write-off 0 -39 675 -39 675

31.12.2015 1 508 408 839 378 2 347 786

Accumulated depreciati on 

31.12.2013 -576 062 -471 201 -1 047 263

Depreciati on charge for the year -55 984 -128 997 -184 981

Depreciati on charge of disposals 0 225 777 225 777

Depreciati on charge of write-off s 0 7 601  7 601

31.12.2014 -632 046 -366 820 -998 866

Depreciati on charge for the year -55 984 -142 240 -198 224

Depreciati on charge of disposals 0 91 679 91 679

Depreciati on charge of write-off s  0 39 614 39 614

31.12.2015 -688 030 -377 767 -1 065 797

Net book value

31.12.2014 876 362 569 239 1 445 601

31.12.2015 820 378 461 611 1 281 989

Carrying amount of property fully amorti sed yet in use as at 31.12.2015 was 122 478 euros 
(2014: 192 913 euros). Value of land is not depreciated and is 108 842 euros.

10. Reinsurance result

11. Property, plant 
and equipment  

In euros Note 2015 2014 

Reinsurance premiums 3 -6 648 620 -5 416 380

Reinsurer’s share of the change in provision for unearned premiums 3 306 948 124 317

Reinsurer’s share in claims paid 7 4 016 783 3 300 111

Reinsurer’s share of the change in the provision for claims outstanding 7 719 618 4 459 821

Reinsurance commission fees and profi t sharing 4 1 251 322 1 257 651

Total -353 949 3 725 520
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12. Intangible assets 
/deferred acquisiti on costs

In euros Other intangible assets Prepayments for intangible 
assets Total intangible assets

Acquisiti on cost  

31.12.2013 2 497 684 940 2 498 624

Acquisiti on 86 316 101 862 188 178

Reclassifi cati on 102 802 -102 802 0

Write-off -220 437 0 -220 437

31.12.2014 2 466 365 0 2 466 365

Acquisiti on 23 329 175 198 198 527

Reclassifi cati on 175 198 -175 198 0

31.12.2015 2 664 892 0 2 664 892

    

Accumulated amorti sati on    

31.12.2013 -814 333 0 -814 333

Amorti sati on charge for the year -298 694 0 -298 694

Depreciati on charge of write-off s 220 437 220 437

31.12.2014 -892 590 0 -892 590

Amorti sati on charge for the year -339 079 0 -339 079

31.12.2015 -1 231 669 0 -1 231 669

    

   

31.12.2014 1 573 775 0 1 573 775

31.12.2015 1 433 223 0 1 433 223
   

Expenses on soft ware acquisiti on are reported under intangible assets. Prepayments for intangible assets 
include expenses on the insurance sales program not yet accounted as assets in use.

Acquisiti ons made during the fi nancial year 2015 include internally capitalised development costs amounti ng 
to 157 169 euros.

Carrying amount of intangible assets fully amorti sed yet in use as at 31.12.2015 was 71 930 euros (2014: 71 
930 euros).
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Deferred acquisiti on costs

In euros

  

31.12.2013 274 450

Deferred 1 569 789

Amorti sed -1 530 373

31.12.2014 313 866

Deferred 2 036 849

Amorti sed -1 938 963

31.12.2015 411 753

In euros  Note 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Shares and equity funds 13.1 757 082 435 149

Bonds and other fi xed income securiti es 13.2 16 136 078 16 574 547

Loans 13.3 129 957 101 889

Term deposits 13.4 95 199 80 373

Total 17 118 316 17 191 958

13. Financial assets

In euros
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Fair value Acquisiti on cost Fair value Acquisiti on cost

Financial assets measured at fair value through 
profi t and loss

Designated at fair value through profi t and loss 
at incepti on

Shares and equity funds 757 082 800 197 435 149 524 226

Bonds and other fi xed income securiti es 16 136 078 16 331 244 16 574 547 16 485 210

Financial assets measured at amorti sed cost

Loans 129 957 149 335 101 889 203 731

Term deposits 95 199 95 000 80 373 80 000

Total 17 118 316 17 375 776 17 191 958 17 293 167
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Shares and the equity fund portf olio are exposed to market risk.

Change in share and equity fund prices and its potenti al eff ect on the Group’s performance 
and equity: 

thousand euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Share prices +10% 76 44

Share prices +20% 151 87

Share prices –10% -76 -44

Share prices –20% -151 -87

Shares and equity fund units are divided by individual currencies as follows: 

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

EUR 427 117 286 496 

USD 308 050 125 211 

GBP 21 915 23 442

Total 757 082 435 149

13.1. Shares and equity funds

In euros  31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Shares 625 519 403 962

Equity funds 131 563 31 187

Total 757 082 435 149
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13.2. Bonds

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

In euros At fair value At fair value

Bonds with a fi xed interest rate

Government and government owned insti tuti ons bonds 1 229 457 1 994 176

Bonds of fi nancial insti tuti ons 0 1 044 136

Other bonds 4 751 972 5 124 033

Total 5 981 429 8 162 345

Bonds with a fl oati ng interest rate

Government and government owned insti tuti ons bonds 162 643

Bonds of fi nancial insti tuti ons 7 542 051 6 686 104

Other bonds 2 612 436  1 725 455

Total 10 154 649 8 412 202

Total bonds 16 136 078 16 574 547

Based on the rati ng of the bond issuer, the bond portf olio is divided as follows:

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

AA Aa 2 413 033  801 944  

A A 996 942 2 991 159

BBB Baa 1 873 273 3 292 713  

BB Ba 2 836 107 3 810 236

CCC Caa 162 0

N/A 8 016 561 5 678 495

Total 16 136 078 16 574 547

By individual currencies, bonds are divided as follows: 

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

EUR 14 943 203 15 380 806

NOK 1 192 875 1 013 849

USD 0 179 892

Total 16 136 078 16 574 547

The bond portf olio is divided by maturity terms as follows:

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Up to 6 months 1 101 125 0

6 months – 1 year 716 961 0

1-3 years 4 781 289 2 489 263

Over 3 years 9 536 703 14 085 284

Total 16 136 078 16 574 547
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Change in interest rate and its potenti al eff ect on the Group’s performance and equity:

thousand euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Change in yield curve +50 base points  -72  -108

Change in yield curve -50 base points +74 +113

Change in yield curve +100 base points -143 -216

Change in yield curve -100 base points +145 +227

Change in yield curve +200 base points -281 -429

Change in yield curve -200 base points +330 +404

13.3. Loans

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Mortgage loans

Loans to related parti es with a term of 3-12 months 27 000 29 000

Other mortgage loans with a term of 3-12 months 60 000 38 984

Total 87 000 67 984

Other loans

Loans with a term of 3-12 months 569 9 057

Loans with a term of 1-3 years 38 688 14 868

Loans with a term of over 3 years 3 700 9 980

Total 42 957 33 905

Total loans 129 957 101 889

By interest rates, the bond portf olio is divided as follows:

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Interest rate: 0.0-2.9% 9 390 322 9 701 150

Interest rate: 4.0-4.9% 1 201 131 1 793 132

Interest rate: 5.0-5.9% 1 572 236 2 289 657

Interest rate: 6.0-6.9% 3 871 737 1 746 472

Interest rate: 7.0-7.9% 100 652 0

Interest rate: 9.0-9.9% 0 1 044 136

Total 16 136 078 16 574 547

Fixed interest rate fi nancial investments meas-
ured at fair value through profi t and loss are 
exposed to potenti al interest rate risk. An over-
view of the potenti al eff ect has been provided 
in the below table. We have made the assump-

ti on that rates can be reduced to zero, and the 
redempti on any lower is unlikely and/or we will 
exit the positi ons as the value creati ng process 
will stop.

The annual interest rates for loans granted fall 
between 4.5% and 7.5%. Internal interest rates 
do not diff er signifi cantly from contractual inter-
ests. The result of the impact from the diff erence 

is inconsequenti al. The Management Board has 
evaluated that the collaterals are suffi  cient to fulfi l 
the obligati ons from the mortgage loans.
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13.4. Term deposits
Term deposits with credit insti tuti ons, by terms:

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Up to 3 months 0 40 125

Term of 3-12 months 95 199 40 248

Total 95 199 80 373

The annual interest rates for term deposits are 1%. Deposits are held in euros. 

13.5. Evaluati on of fi nancial instruments 
under IFRS 13 levels

In euros

31.12.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value

Shares and equity funds 757 082 0 0 757 082

Bonds 16 035 426 0 100 652 16 136 078

Term deposits 0 95 199 0 95 199

Loans 0 0 129 957 129 957

Assets measured at amorti sed cost

Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 3 648 409 3 648 409

Receivables from insurance acti viti es 0 0 1 200 808 1 200 808

Receivables from reinsurance 0 0 56 082 56 082

Liabiliti es measured at amorti sed cost

Liabiliti es from direct insurance acti viti es and reinsurance and 
deferred liabiliti es

0 0 1 617 859 1 617 859

In euros

31.12.2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value

Shares and equity funds 435 149 0 0 435 149

Bonds and other fi xed income securiti es 16 574 547 0 0 16 574 547

Term deposits 0 80 373 0 80 373

Loans 0 0 101 889 101 889

Assets measured at amorti sed cost

Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 2 095 408 2 095 408

Receivables from insurance acti viti es 0 0 1 310 832 1 310 832

Receivables from reinsurance 0 0 48 711 48 711

Liabiliti es measured at amorti sed cost

Liabiliti es from direct insurance acti viti es and reinsurance and 
deferred liabiliti es

0 0 1 602 341 1 602 341

Profi t from revaluati on of fi nancial assets amounti ng to 252 thousand euros is recognised in investment 
income. There were no changes in valuati on policy.
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In euros Note 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Receivables from reinsurance 56 082 48 711

Reinsurer’s share in provisions 20  11 153 711 10 127 145

Total 11 209 793 10 175 856

All receivables from reinsurance are due within 12 months.

15. Receivables from insurance 
acti viti es and other receivables

In euros 31.12.2015   31.12.2014

Policyholders 170 053 177 617

Insurance brokers 338 277 268 508

Recoveries and salvages 675 018 864 707

Other accrued income 26 712 13 479

Other prepaid expenses 89 889 87 614

Total 1 299 949 1 411 925

14. Receivables under 
reinsurance contracts

Term of the receivables:

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Not due yet 1 068 653 1 220 985

Due for up to 3 months 212 109 159 400

Due for 3-6 months 1 680 13 932

Due for 6-12 months 17 507 17 608

Total 1 299 949 1 411 925 
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16. Cash and cash equivalents

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Cash in hand                    6 482 4 965

Cash at bank               3 641 927 2 090 443 

Total 3 648 409 2 095 408

Cash and cash equivalents by individual currencies:

 In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

EUR 3 423 964 1 753 831

USD 206 316 291 013

NOK 18 129 50 564

Total 3 648 409 2 095 408

 In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Shareholder's equity 14 331 490 14 744 975

Available solvency margin 11 840 185 12 271 200

Calculated solvency margin 1 882 387 1 669 020

Surplus of solvency margin 9 957 798 10 602 180

17. Shareholders’ equity 
and required solvency margin

The Insurance Acti viti es Act lays down the require-
ments established for non-life insurance under-
takings with respect to shareholders’ equity and 
the solvency margin. To ensure that an insurance 
undertaking is capable of meeti ng the obligati ons 
arising from insurance contracts, the insurance 
undertaking shall have an adequate solvency 
margin available, which shall be at least equal to 

the requirements and conform to the structure 
provided in the Insurance Acti viti es Act. The insur-
ance undertaking follows the capital management 
principle according to which the total amount of 
the assets of an insurance undertaking shall not, 
at any ti me, be less than the minimum solvency 
margin or the established consolidated solvency 
margin.

The minimum solvency margin of an insurance 
undertaking has been established at 3.5 million 
euros. The Group and regulated entities within it 
have met all of these requirements throughout 
the financial year.

The capital management principles are 
described in Note 18. 

Share capital

As of 31.12.2014, the registered share capital of the 
Group amounted to 3.2 mln euros (2012: 3.2 mln 
euros), divided into 1 mln shares (2013: 1 mln) with 
a nominal value of 3.2 euros. 55% of the Group’s 
shares are held by Estonian private persons. Each 
share grants its holder the right to receive dividends 
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if dividends are declared, as well as one vote at the 
general meeti ng of the shareholders. No transac-
ti ons involving the shares of the Company were 
carried out in the reporti ng period. 

Dividends

In 2015, a total of 900 000 euros was paid in divi-
dends, i.e. 0.9 euros per share (2014: 900 000 euros 
i.e. 0.9 euros per share). 

Reserve capital

The insurance company establishes the mandatory 
reserve capital in accordance with the require-
ments of the Commercial Code, and under the 
sti pulati ons of the Arti cles of Associati on. Reserve 
capital is a mandatory reserve, prescribed by the 
Commercial Code, which can be used for covering 

the loss, if loss cannot be covered from the avail-
able shareholder’s equity. Mandatory reserve can 
also be used for increasing the share capital of the 
company. The minimum amount of the reserve 
capital is 10% of the share capital. The reserve 
capital is made up of profi t allocati ons and cannot 
be distributed to shareholders.

The reserve capital includes the mandatory reserve 
of Salva Kindlustuse AS (pursuant to subsecti on 
336 (2) of the Commercial Code) in the amount of 
319 558 euros, and the mandatory reserve of Salva 
Kahjukäsitluse OÜ (pursuant to subsecti on 160 (2) of 
the Commercial Code) in the amount of 1 278 euros. 

Other reserves

Other reserves represent a reserve established 
from net profi t allocati ons, and are used for 
covering potenti al losses.

18. Risk policy and risk 
management of Salva 
Kindlustuse AS

Inasmuch as the daily business of the Group entails 
taking of various risks, the management of these 
risks also forms a signifi cant part of the Group’s 
acti vity. The structure of the internal audit and risk 
management organisati on covers various levels of 
the Group.

The availability of resources and approval of the 
strategy is ensured at the supervisory board level.

Their actual implementati on is handled at the 
management board level. The management board 
distributes responsibiliti es, rights and obligati ons, 
and defi nes the strategic objecti ves.

Operati on and fi nancial risk management commit-
tees have been established to assess the risk on a 
systemati c basis; these committ ees handle most 
of the risk identi fi cati on, analyses, disclosure and 
management processes. The risk committ ee meets 
when there are changes in the outside environment 
or inside the company. The committ ee is charged 
with the task of generati ng transparency of the 

enti re risk situati on, as well as identi fying the areas 
requiring special att enti on.

In additi on, the Group has engaged an organisati on 
responsible for internal auditi ng; this organisati on 
provides an external Group valuati on of the func-
ti oning of the enti re risk management model, parti c-
ipati ng in the work of various levels, if required, and 
reporti ng to the supervisory board and manage-
ment board.

While separate units are formed to manage oper-
ati onal and fi nancial risks, the management of 
the insurance risk - the Company’s main acti vity - 
involves the best eff orts of the enti re organisati on.

For the purpose of securing liabiliti es arising from 
non-life insurance contracts, it is essenti al to select 
assets, which, by their durability and value at matu-
rity date, match the esti mated cash fl ows from 
damage arising from the portf olio. This allows to 
hedge risks in the most natural way. A reference 
base is provided by the money and capital market.
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Insurance risk management

Risk management principles and insurance risk 
management policy

The Group’s insurance acti viti es presume a risk 
of a loss event occurring to a person or company 
directly associated with an insurance contract.

Such risk may be related to the person’s property, 
liability, health, fi nancial or other losses, deriving 
from an insured event. The Group as such is not 
fully protected against ti me-related uncertainti es 
and gravity of losses stemming from insurance 
contracts. Moreover, we are also open to market 
risks arising from insurance and investment acti v-
iti es. Bearing risks is the main acti vity of an insur-
ance company.

Insurance risk management is carried out on a 
daily basis, relying on various sources: informati on 
provided by the market, informati on contained in 
the existi ng sales system, actuarial knowledge/
models, as well as know-how and processes used 
by the insurance departments. Insurance risk 
is hedged and managed by applying the under-
writi ng limitati ons, procedures and limits for 
co-ordinati on of the acti viti es, as well as pricing 
guidelines and reinsurance.

The Group applies various methods for assessing 
and monitoring the occurrence of insurance risks 
both at the single risk level and the general level. 
These methods involve internal risk measuring 
models and sensiti vity analyses.

The main risk stems from the fact that the actual 
frequency and gravity of losses can be higher than 
expected. Moreover, any insured event is acci-
dental by its nature, and in any year the actual 
number of events and their dimensions can diff er 
from the esti mates calculated by applying stati s-
ti cal methods.

 
Underwriti ng strategy

The objecti ve of the underwriti ng strategy is to 
achieve portf olio diversity in order to ensure 
portf olio balance in such a way as to provide the 
Group with suffi  cient resources for covering the 
risk in case of realisati on of the insurance risks of 
the Group’s customers. We believe that a large 

portf olio of similar risks ensures a bett er predict-
ability of the results, and that versati lity of the 
various types of insurance risks allows us to create 
a balanced portf olio.

Implementati on of the strategy is carried out on 
a current basis through the pricing policy and the 
parti cipati on of underwriters. “Parti cipati on of 
underwriters” means that any risks exceeding the 
signatory rights of the sales staff  must always be 
fi xed with a decision of the underwriter in a format 
which can be reproduced in writi ng. Database 
inquiries are made in order to identi fy extraor-
dinary risks. In the course of these inquiries, the 
risks diverging from the average within the port-
folio are analysed. The foundati on of the manage-
ment of insurance risks lays in the improvement of 
the risk awareness of all staff  members, as well as 
creati on of a control environment.

The management reports are analysed on a 
monthly basis, by paying att enti on to the collec-
ti on of insurance premiums, and the loss rati o of 
underwriti ng years.

As a rule, insurance contracts are concluded for a 
period of one year, with the maximum term being 
fi ve years.

An underwriti ng risk can derive from an insuffi  -
cient insurance premium accepted for the risk 
assumed, or an incompetent risk evaluator who 
validates a non-insurable risk. Our insurance risk 
management process is mainly based on reason-
able pricing, product development, risk selecti on 
and reinsurance. We therefore carefully monitor 
any changes in the economic environment, and 
respond accordingly.

Reinsurance strategy

Reinsurance is used for hedging the assumed 
insurance risks and protecti ng owner’s equity. 
Under the Salva Kindlustuse AS insurance risk 
hedging principles, both proporti onal and 
non-proporti onal obligatory reinsurance contracts 
are applied. Underwriters shall have the right 
and, under the conditi ons set forth in the internal 
guidelines, the obligati on to conclude facultati ve 
reinsurance contracts.



46

SALVA KINDLUSTUSE AS
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Reinsurance risk

In order to reduce its insurance risks, Salva Kindlus-
tuse AS has concluded reinsurance contracts with 
diff erent reinsurance partners. These reinsurance 
contracts spread the risks and minimise the impact 
of losses on the Group’s net results. The reinsur-
ance conditi ons include the reinsurer’s obliga-
ti on to indemnify an agreed part of the disbursed 
losses. The Company has adopted the minimum 
acceptable public credit rati ng for its reinsurers 
Standard & Poor’s “A-” rati ng or higher. Any risks 
inherent in the reinsurance are associated both 
with insurance and investment acti viti es.

Property insurance 

Product features. Salva Kindlustus provides insur-
ance cover to property objects located in Estonia, 
as well as property held by Estonian customers 
abroad. Property insurance protects, with certain 
limitati ons and restricti ons specifi ed in the insur-
ance contract, the tangible assets of the policy-
holder against loss or damage. Revenue from this 
product is generated through insurance premiums, 
less any amounts required to sati sfy the claim, 
and operati ng expenses. As a rule, any event that 
causes damage to property or building (e.g. fi re or 
theft ) comes unexpectedly, with the cause being 
easy to establish. The claim is therefore submitt ed 
promptly, and can be sati sfi ed without delay. Prop-
erty insurance is therefore classifi ed as short-term, 
meaning that the risk of subsequent increase in 
expenses is immaterial.

Property insurance risk management. The main 
risks associated with property insurance include 
acquisiti on risk, competi ti on risk, risk of insuffi  -
cient experience in the claims segment, and risk 
of fraud. Acquisiti on risk involves the Company’s 
failure to collect suffi  cient insurance premiums for 
diff erent property items insured. Risk associated 
with any policy diff ers by various features, like the 
locati on of the object, the applied safety meas-
ures, the fi eld of acti vity insured, the age of the 
property, etc.

In the property insurance segment, risks are 
managed primarily through balanced pricing and 
risk selecti on. In order to maintain acceptability of 
risks, stringent acquisiti on rules are applied.

Motor vehicle insurance 

Product features. The insured object of motor 
vehicle insurance is a land vehicle registered in the 
Republic of Estonia, or a vehicle associated with 
an Estonian-based customer in a foreign country. 
Motor vehicle insurance protects the policyholder, 
under certain limitati ons established in the insur-
ance contract, against losses caused by possible 
damage, destructi on or loss of the insured object. 

Management of motor own damage insurance 
risks. Compared to other insurance classes, the 
motor vehicle insurance risk is characterised by 
high frequency of damage, and relati vely non-fl uc-
tuati ng average losses. The risks are managed 
similarly to property insurance - through pricing 
and selecti ve underwriti ng. In this category, the 
noti fi cati on period is short, and the damage is 
relati vely uncomplicated. Accuracy of assessment 
of claims associated with this class of insurance 
involves a relati vely low risk level.

Frequency of damage depends on the weather 
conditi ons; the damage volume is higher in winter 
months. The Group monitors any changes in the 
causes, amounts and frequencies of the loss 
claims, and adjusts the pricing accordingly.

Motor third party liability insurance

Product features. Motor third party liability covers 
traffi  c losses incurred in the European Union 
member states, and in member states covered by 
the Green Card agreement. In the case of indemni-
fi cati on of losses in an insurance case covered by a 
motor third party liability insurance contract, the 
liability limits eff ecti ve in the country where the 
traffi  c accident occurred are applied; these limits 
are absent in some countries altogether. Motor 
third party liability insurance indemnifi es for prop-
erty and personal damage caused to a third person. 
Pursuant to the laws of the Republic of Estonia, 
medical expenses of the person driving the vehicle 
that caused the accident are covered as well. 

Motor third party liability insurance risk manage-
ment. Risks which arise from motor third party 
liability insurance are hedged through pricing and 
reinsurance. Conscious risk selecti on is impossible 
- by law, the Company may not refuse to serve an 
obligatory customer, if the customer turns to the 
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Company. The accuracy and adequacy of rates is 
conti nuously monitored, and modifi ed in accord-
ance with changes in the environment. Moreover, 
the motor third party liability insurance involves 
a highly long-term component, i.e. annuity 
payments. The pricing of the motor third party 
liability insurance products takes into considera-
ti on the fact that personal damage expenses grow 
over ti me. Thus, the uncertainty level of annuity 
provision esti mates is one of the highest.

In the motor third party liability insurance segment, 
the Company has limited the extent of its liability 
by applying reinsurance with an excess of loss of 
250 thousand euros, i.e. any expenses above this 
amount are covered by the reinsurer.

Concentrati on risk involved in the insurance acti vity

A string of similar events or one event can infl u-
ence the liabiliti es and the equity of the Group. 
In order to avoid emergence of concentrati on 
deriving from one insurance contract or related 
contracts, control procedures and underwriti ng 
limits have been established. Geographical spread 
of insurance risks is essenti al because external 
factors, e.g. storm, fl ood, fi re and crime rate 
increase may occur in certain areas, thus aff ecti ng 
the insured objects in the area and having a nega-
ti ve bearing on the Group’s cash fl ows.

The danger of culminati on of various risks is mainly 
handled by the management that evaluates the 
materiality and probability of the risk, and applies 
hedging measures if necessary.

The concentrati on of liabiliti es arising from insur-
ance contracts has been brought out below, by 
insurance categories.

31.12.2015

Type of insurance
in thousand euros

Gross liabiliti es related 
to insurance contracts

Reinsurer’s share
of liabiliti es Net liabiliti es

Motor third party liability insurance 13 007 8 733 4 274

Property insurance 3 380 1 309 2 071

Short-term health insurance 1 409 594 815

Motor vehicle insurance 556 44 512

Motor vehicle owner’s liability 298 252 46

Liability insurance 276 224 52

Monetary Damage 69 7 62

Insurance of goods in transit 42 47 -5

Railway rolling stock and small craft 2 0 2

Total 19 039 11 210 7 829

31.12.2014

Type of insurance
in thousand euros

Gross liabiliti es related 
to insurance contracts

Reinsurer’s share
of liabiliti es Net liabiliti es

Motor third party liability insurance 12 148 8 564 3 584

Property insurance 2 181 530 1 651

Motor vehicle insurance 1 453 604 849

Short-term health insurance 379 36 343

Motor vehicle owner’s liability 169 132 36

Liability insurance 250 200 50

Monetary Damage 71 9 61

Insurance of goods in transit 47 46 1

Railway rolling stock and small craft 7 6 1

Total 16 705 10 127 6 578
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Sensiti vity analysis

The table describes some of the premises that characterise the potenti al eff ect of risk parameter changes on 
the Group’s performance and equity.

31.12.2015

Factors
In thousand euros Value Potenti al change Eff ect on equity, 

thousands of euros Eff ect on equity, %

Net claims incurred 7 173 +5% -359 -2,51

High net loss of motor third party 
liability insurance

-250 -1,74

High net loss of property insurance -450 -3,14

Operati ng expenses 5 857 +5% -293  -2,04

31.12.2014

Factors
In thousand euros Value Potenti al change Eff ect on equity, 

thousands of euros Eff ect on equity, %

Net claims incurred 5 494 +5% -275 -1,87

High net loss of motor third party 
liability insurance

-250 -1,69

High net loss of property insurance -450 -3,05

Operati ng expenses 5 468 +5% -273  -1,85

Financial risk management

Insurance acti viti es and investment acti viti es 
may involve fi nancial risks. Financial risk manage-
ment in the Group is based on hedging the risks 
in a natural way, rather than by way of structured 
fi nancial instruments. Financial risks are managed 
on the basis of the substi tute portf olio method. 
The substi tute portf olio is made up of incoming 
and outgoing cash fl ows associated with insurance 
acti viti es. Cash fl ows cause fi nancial risks, mainly 
due to the ti me diff erence between the insured 
event and claim payment, or currency diff erence. 
Financial risks may include market risk, credit risk 
(including claims against reinsurers) and liquidity 
risk. As regards volume, the biggest risk is the 
interest risk deriving from the ti me diff erence 
between the insured event and claim payment, 
which is a part of the market risk. The interest 
rates which form the basis for measurement of 
the interest risk are based on the EUR Sovereign 
Benchmark yield curve, which is a material input 
in the assessment of the value of the substi tute 

portf olio. Due to the randomness of the cash fl ows 
associated with insurance acti viti es, we consider 
liquidity risk to be a material fi nancial risk. Concen-
trati on of the fi nancial risks is disclosed in subsec-
ti on note 13 (investments by currency).

Market risk

Market risk stems from the placement of the 
Group’s assets in fi nancial instruments which are 
sensiti ve to market risk with respect to the substi -
tute portf olio. A market risk can be described as 
a risk of the fair value of the fi nancial instrument 
changing, above all, due to changes in interest 
rates, price of securiti es or currency exchange 
rate with respect to the substi tute portf olio which 
has been created on the basis of the comparati ve 
base of cash fl ows which serve as the basis for the 
liabiliti es.

A policy defi ning the approved investments 
and investment-making (i.e. management) has 
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been established in order to manage the market 
risks. This policy governs the selecti on of various 
asset classes and the method of their acquisiti on 
(including the terms and conditi ons for the trans-
acti ons).

The above asset distributi on policy or strategic 
asset distributi on hedges the fi nancial risk asso-
ciated with the liabiliti es deriving from insurance 
acti viti es, rather than increasing the risk. The asset 
distributi on focuses, in the extent of the liabiliti es 
arising from insurance acti viti es, on fi xed-income 
and highly liquid debt instruments or instruments 
containing such debt instruments. Bonds and bank 
deposits are the most popular among such instru-
ments.

We use asset-liability matching tests (LArM-tests), 
stress tests and other tests in order to determine 
the extreme risks and prepare the most suitable 
strategic distributi on of assets. The structure of 
the assets and investi ng acti viti es comply with 

the principles of correlati on between liabiliti es 
and assets, and the adequacy of the risk reserve. 
The Company acti vely manages the portf olio, and 
conti nually monitors the situati on and trends on 
the money and capital markets. 

Credit risk
The credit risk impacti ng the assets of the 
Company derives from the counterparty’s inability 
to comply with its contractual obligati ons. These 
assets may, for instance, include bonds and loans 
or claims. Receivables with the highest risk include 
claims related to insurance acti viti es, such as 
receivables from reinsurers and insurance brokers. 
Compliance of the receivables with the contract is 
monitored on a daily basis. The credit risk related 
to the Group’s fi nancial investments is suffi  ciently 
diversifi ed between the various counterparti es. 
The loans granted have been secured, except for 
loans granted to the Company’s own employees.

The below table provides an overview of the maximum exposure of the balance sheet lines and future 
liabili ti es to diff erent fi nancial risks:

In euros Principal 
fi nancial risk

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Financial assets measured at fair value through profi t and loss

Shares and equity funds Market risk, 
liquidity risk 13.1 757 082 435 149

Bonds

Market risk, 
liquidity 
risk, interest 
risk(fi xed), 
credit risk

13.2 16 136 078 16 574 547

Financial assets at amorti sed cost

Loans and term deposits Credit risk 13.3,13.4 225 156 182 262

Receivables under reinsurance contracts Credit risk 14 11 209 793 10 175 856

Receivables from insurance acti viti es and other receivables Credit risk 15 1 299 949 1 411 925

Cash and cash equivalents Credit risk 16 3 648 408 2 095 408

Total exposure to fi nancial risk 33 276 466 30 875 147



50

SALVA KINDLUSTUSE AS
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

In euros Deposits Shares Bonds

Nordea Bank 95 199 0 2 196 063

Nokia Co 0 0 1 382 875

Nykredit Bank AS 0 0 1 300 921

Kemira OYJ 0 0 1 046 573

Tallink Group 0 103 286 1 192 875

Total 95 199 103 286 7 119 307

Receivables under reinsurance contracts do not 
include the reinsurance share of the provision for 
unearned premiums, as this does not form a part 
of fi nancial assets. 

Concentrati on risk

Concentrati on risk means greater risk of loss 
related to an inadequately distributed portf olio of 

assets or/and liabiliti es. Concentrati on risk mainly 
concerns market and credit risks related to invest-
ment portf olios of single counterparti es.

The table below provides an overview of the 
concentrati on of market and credit risk in fi ve 
greater single counterparti es and fi nancial classes 
as at 31.12.2015:

Currency risk

Currency risk involves the possibility of foreign 
exchange losses.

No separate measures are applied to hedge 
currency exchange rate risks, as the premiums 
received in other currencies form a relati vely 
marginal share of total receipts, and the ti me 
when they are held by the company is short. 
The company has managed the currency risk by 
keeping a majority of the fi nancial investments in 
euros. 

Interest risk

Interest risks are borne by short and long-term 
fi nancial assets and liabiliti es sensiti ve to changes 
in interest rates. To hedge the interest risk, the 
Company monitors the durati on of the positi ons 
exposed to the interest risk in the investment port-
folio. Replicati on of the weighted average durati on 
between the liabiliti es and assets has a material 
eff ect on the exposure to interest risk. The diff er-
ence between the weighted average durati on of 
liabiliti es arising from insurance acti viti es, and the 
weighted average durati on of the volume of assets 
exposed to interest risk is an important indicator 
of the sensiti vity of the value change. 

Liquidity risk

The company experiences a daily need for fi nan-
cial resources in order to indemnify for losses. 
The assets of the Group have been placed with an 
extremely high degree of conservati sm as regards 
the liquidity risk. Nearly 80% of the Group’s fi nan-
cial assets can be realised within seven days, 
without considerably losing the current value 
of the positi on. Considering that reinsurers are 
obliged to compensate their share of loss within 
14 days, and that the average ti me spent on claims 
handling and reserve payment falls between 20 
and 40 days, the management believes that the 
liquidity risk has been suffi  ciently managed by the 
Company.

 
Operati onal risk

Daily acti viti es, such as provision of services to 
policyholders, conclusion and draft ing of agree-
ments, management of the organisati on, admin-
istrati on of user rights, etc. involve various risks 
that can be referred to as operati onal risks. Data 
pertaining to conclusion of signifi cant transacti ons 
are stored in databases. This process is enabled by 
business-supporti ng technology. Operati onal risk 
can thus stem from human errors or fraud, but 
also from registrati on or monitoring errors associ-
ated with transacti ons and positi ons, conditi oned 
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by system reliability. Operati onal risk may also 
stem from inadequately composed data system or 
internal inspecti on that may result in unpredict-
able losses. Such risks originate from within the 
Company, and can be directly controlled by the 
management.

Strategic operati onal risk is a risk associated with 
dramati c policy changes, the changing needs of 
the members of society, legislati ve changes or 
changes in government policy, taxati on, etc. A 
strategic operati onal risk originates from outside 
the Company and cannot be directly controlled by 
the Company.

The principal objecti ve of the management of 
operati onal risks within the Group is the preven-
ti on of risks. We base risk preventi on on the proac-
ti ve behaviour on behalf of both management 
and staff . We have launched internal training to 
enhance our understanding of the operati onal 
risks. Evaluati on and measurement of operati onal 
risk is of secondary importance. Evaluati on and 
measurement of operati onal risks help create 
the relevant atti  tudes, which form the basis for a 
strong risk management culture within an organ-
isati on.

Once a year, an operati onal risk assessment 
is performed, involving all key employees. Yet 
assessment is only one part of the management. 
The main emphasis is placed on disclosure and 
consistent exchange of informati on, and the 
processes supporti ng the same ― with the aim 
of generati ng a strong risk management culture 
from top to bott om. In additi on, training courses 
and training days are organised on an annual basis 
for the key staff  of the risk-bearing divisions. The 
training involves analysis of diff erent cases and 
their causes. The instructi on or mentoring process 
is designed to communicate the know-how and 
skills to the staff .  Minutes are taken of the discus-
sions and valuati ons, and made available to all key 
employees, thus creati ng a control environment 
as well as a strong organisati onal culture which is 
based on executi ng the decisions passed.

Operati onal risk management is not a separate 
process ― it is a part of strategic management 
within the context of long-term planning. These 
issues are handled more frequently, if the environ-
ment so requires.

Goals, strategy and processes of capital 
management

The Company proceeds from the following goals, 
strategies and processes in order to manage risks 
which aff ect the Company’s capital positi on.

The purpose of capital management is to manage 
capital in such a way as to guarantee the Compa-
ny’s sustainability and stability by simultaneously 
ensuring protecti on of the interests of policy-
holders, creditors and shareholders. Capital 
management within the Group involves the simul-
taneous management of assets, liabiliti es and 
risks, and regular monitoring of the adherence 
to capital requirements in order to be fi nancially 
strong and ensure suffi  cient liquidity.

Further to the area of acti vity, the Group’s opera-
ti ons are subject to supervision. Insurance super-
vision mainly serves the purpose of protecti ng 
the rights of policyholders, and ensuring that the 
Group is managed in view of the interests of poli-
cyholders. At the same ti me, insurance supervision 
makes sure that the Group maintains suffi  cient 
solvency in order to serve unforeseen liabiliti es 
arising from fi nancial shocks or natural disasters.

The requirements for the insurance undertaking’s 
solvency margin are sti pulated in the Insurance 
Acti viti es Act. Pursuant to subsecti on 71 (3) of 
the Insurance Acti viti es Act, the solvency margin 
minimum shall be 3.5 million euros. The Group’s 
solvency margin was 11.8 million euros at the 
end of 2015, in line with the rules for accounti ng 
for the solvency margin, sti pulated in the Insur-
ance Acti viti es Act. The minimum consolidated 
solvency margin is 1.9 million euros (2014: 1.7 
million euros). 
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19. Development of claims

The table representi ng formati on of losses has 
been prepared with the intent of placing the gross 
outstanding claims reserves into a context that 
would allow comparing the formati on of losses 
with historical data. As a result, this table repre-
sents the Company’s ability to assess the aggre-
gated value of losses, and esti mate whether or 
not the historical reserves have been suffi  cient. 

The table discloses the esti mates of cumulati ve 
incurred claims for the last ten years (including 
provisions for reported claims and incurred but 
not reported claims together with cumulati ve 
payments to date net of recoveries and salvages) 
as at the end of the fi rst year aft er the incepti on 
of the policy, which have been compared to the 
esti mates as at the end of subsequent years.

In thousand euros

Cumulati ve 
esti mate of losses

Before
2004

2005
 

2006
 

2007
 

2008
 

2009
 

2010
 

2011
 

2012
 

2013
 

2014
 

2015
 

Total
 

As at 31 December 
starti ng from the 
validity of the 
policy

14 385 16 754 14 364 11 762 10 321 11 155 7 572 9 239 10 577 10 601

2 year later 13 755 16 358 14 015 11 603 10 055 10 749 7 550 9 281 10 240

3 years... 13 446 16 225 13 794 11 453 9 963 10 370 14 082 9 093

4 years... 13 399 16 147 13 590 11 306 9 557 10 242 14 094

5 years... 13 311 15 742 13 312 11 160 9 544 10 149

6 years... 13 199 15 763 13 199 11 096 9 523

7 years... 13 184 15 759 13 196 11 111

8 years... 13 152 15 819 13 219

9 years... 13 156 15 747

10 years...  13 148            

Cumulati ve 
esti mate of claims  13 148 15 747 13 219 11 111 9 523 10 149 14 094 9 093 10 240 10 601   

The adequacy of 
esti mate made 1 
year aft er the end 
of validity of the
policy as at 
31.12.2015

 109% 106% 109% 106% 108% 110% 54% 102% 103%    

Total disburse-
ments as at 
31.12.2015

 13 069 14 676 12 953 10 864 9 359 9 853 9 371 8 545 8 855 8 436 5 411  

Provision for 
outstanding claims 
as at 31.12.2015

464 79 1071 266 247 164 296 4723 548 1385 2165 3008 14 416
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In the management’s opinion, the amounts of 
technical reserves reported in the fi nancial state-
ments prepared as of the end of 2015 are accu-
rate and suffi  cient for covering any future liabili-
ti es arising from the insurance portf olio. Technical 

reserves have been calculated on the basis of the 
informati on available as of the reporti ng date on 
the risks involved in the insurance portf olio, and 
comply with the generally accepted actuarial prin-
ciples, and internal guidelines of the Company.

20. Liabiliti es related to insurance 
contracts and reinsurance share

 In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Gross

Provision for losses incurred in previous periods 7 522 032 7 180 111

Provision for losses incurred in the reporti ng period 3 459 771 2 387 158

Provision for losses which were incurred in the previous periods but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 97 744 152 053

Provision for losses which were incurred in the reporti ng period but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 658 599 527 593

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the previous periods 2 677 562 2 510 564

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the reporti ng period 0 31 875

Provision for unearned premiums 4 623 012 3 916 028

Total 19 038 720 16 705 382

Reinsurer’s share   

Provision for losses incurred in previous periods 6 099 413 5 935 118

Provision for losses incurred in the reporti ng period 1 464 652 831 531

Provision for losses which were incurred in the previous periods but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 91 890 150 607

Provision for losses which were incurred in the reporti ng period but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 312 394 347 434

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the previous periods 1 569 574 1 540 865

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the reporti ng period 0 12 750

Provision for unearned premiums 1 615 788 1 308 840

Total 11 153 711 10 127 145

Net

Provision for losses incurred in the previous periods 1 422 619 1 244 993

Provision for losses incurred in the reporti ng period 1 995 119 1 555 627

Provision for losses which were incurred in the previous periods but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 5 854 1 446

Provision for losses which were incurred in the reporti ng period but have not yet been reported (IBNR) 346 205 180 159

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the previous periods 1 107 988 969 699

Provision for annuity under motor third party liability insurance incurred in the reporti ng period 0 19 125

Provision for unearned premiums 3 007 224 2 607 188

Total 7 885 009 6 578 237

The liabiliti es from insurance contracts are fulfi lled generally within 12 months, except for the provision for 
annuity under motor third party liability insurance.
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20.1. Provision for unearned premiums

In euros Liabiliti es under insurance 
contracts Reinsurer’s share Net

As at 01.01.2015 3 916 028 1 308 840 2 607 188

Premiums writt en in the year 19 092 524 6 648 620 12 443 904

Premiums earned during the year -18 385 540 -6 341 672 -12 043 868

As at 31.12.2015 4 623 012 1 615 788 3 007 224

In euros Liabiliti es under insurance 
contracts Reinsurer’s share Net

As at 01.01.2014 3 690 116 1 184 523 2 505 593

Premiums writt en in the year 16 571 243 5 416 380 11 154 863

Premiums earned during the year -16 345 331 -5 292 063 -11 053 268

As at 31.12.2014 3 916 028 1 308 840 2 607 188

20.2. Provision for losses incurred

In euros Liabiliti es under insurance 
contracts Reinsurer’s share Net

As at 01.01.2015 12 789 354 8 818 305 3 971 049

Claims paid during the year that 
incurred in prior accident years 

-1 914 404 -914 991 -1 214 102

Claims paid during the year that 
incurred in the current accident year

-8 602 464 -2 967 595 -4 675 798

Adjustment to claims incurred in prior 
accident years

-577 612 -142 437 -477 116

Losses incurred during the year 12 720 834 4 744 641 6 430 709

As at 31.12.2015 14 415 708 9 537 923 4 877 785

In euros Liabiliti es under insurance 
contracts Reinsurer’s share Net

As at 01.01.2014 8 265 840 4 358 484 3 907 356

Claims paid during the year that 
incurred in prior accident years 

-2 598 925 -1 384 823 -1 214 102

Claims paid during the year that 
incurred in the current accident year

-6 696 265 -2 020 467 -4 675 798

Adjustment to claims incurred in prior 
accident years

4 175 813 4 652 929 -477 116

Losses incurred during the year 9 642 891 3 212 182 6 430 709

As at 31.12.2014 12 789 354 8 818 305 3 971 049
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21. Liabiliti es under reinsurance

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Payables to reinsurers 881 752 448 078

Reinsurer’s share in recoveries and salvage 274 188 408 385

Reinsurer’s share of the deferred acquisiti on costs 259 423 266 652

Total 1 415 363 1 123 115

All liabiliti es under reinsurance are short-term (up to 12 months).

22. Liabiliti es from direct insurance acti viti es  

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Policyholder prepayments 343 066 273 378

Payables to insurance brokers 175 501 123 438

Other liabiliti es 19 007 13 322

Total 537 574 410 138

All liabiliti es from direct insurance are short-term (up to 12 months).

23. Accrued expenses and other 
deferred revenue

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

   

Payables to employees 139 458 331 057

Vacati on accrual 77 048 70 747

Value added tax 43 927 33 415

Personal income tax 58 921 56 905

Social tax 126 603 116 918

Unemployment insurance 7 759 8 286

Funded pension liability 6 155 5 675

Corporate income tax 8 922 6 721

Accounts payable 85 525 69 088

Government grant 525 967 525 967

Total 1 080 285 1 224 779



56

SALVA KINDLUSTUSE AS
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

All accruals are short-term (up to 12 months), 
except for government grants that are recognised 
as prepaid income. Received government grants 
for research and development are recognised 
as prepaid income. The management Board has 

decided not to recognise them as revenue unti l it 
is clear that all terms and conditi ons for retaining 
are fulfi lled. The company is in the process of 
fulfi lling the terms.

24. Operati ng lease

Assets used under operati ng lease

The consolidated fi nancial statements disclose the rental expenses on passenger cars and offi  ce space. 

In euros 2015 2014 

Passenger car rental payments 13 354 10 456

Offi  ce space rental payments 197 753 209 125

Consolidated rental expenses of next periods, under non-cancellable contracts: 

In euros

Up to 1 year 36 213

1-5 years 69 604

The lease contracts have been concluded for a fi xed term, for a period of 1-5 years.

Assets leased out under operati ng lease

The consolidated fi nancial statements disclose other rental revenue and revenue generated from lease of 
premises.

In euros 2015 2014 

Offi  ce space rental revenue 54 762 49 218

Consolidated rental revenue in the next periods, under non-cancellable contracts:

In euros

Up to 1 year 43 914

1-5 years 10 017
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26. Related party 
transacti ons

Related party

Related parti es are considered:
• the Company’s shareholders
   Tiit Pahapill 45%
   ING Luxembourg S.A. AIF Account 45%
   Eraisikud 10%
• other companies belonging to the same consol-

idati on group
• the Company’s management board and supervi-

sory board members

Transacti ons with members of the 
management board and supervisory board

In 2015, insurance contracts with aggregate 
premiums of 7 260 euros were concluded with 
members of the management board and claims 
paid amounted to 538 euros. The wages of the 
members of the management board amounted 
to 379 thousand euros and the remunerati on paid 

25. Provisions 
and conti ngent liabiliti es

Income tax

As of 31.12.2015, the company’s retained earnings 
amounted to 10 648 841 euros (last year:11 079 
781 euros) and net book value of intangible assets 
amounted to 1 844 976 euros (last year: 1 887 641). 
The maximum possible income tax liability related 
to the payment of the company’s retained earnings 
as dividends is 1 760 773 euros (last year: 1 838 
428 euros). The company can thus pay a total of 7 
043 092 euros of net dividends (last year 7 353 712 
euros). The maximum possible income tax liability 
has been calculated based on the assumpti on that 
the net dividends to be paid, and the related total 

income tax expenses to be recorded in the compre-
hensive income statement of 2016 would not 
exceed the distributable profi t as of 31.12.2015.

Other

Claims of acti on in the amount of 3 342 416 euros 
have been submitt ed against Salva Kindlustuse AS in 
connecti on with insurance losses. The management 
board esti mates approximately 675 000 euros of 
these claims to be sati sfi ed, with the corresponding 
amount charged to the outstanding claims reserve. 

to members of the supervisory board to 31 thou-
sand euros. Remunerati on of the members of the 
board is based on the basic salary. The acti viti es 
as the board member are not remunerated sepa-
rately, therefore the members of the board are not 
enti tled to performance fee. The members of the 
management board and supervisory board are not 
enti tled to any severance compensati on regard-
less of the basis for terminati on of the mandate. 
The members of the Management Board of the 
company may be paid rewards for the perfor-
mance according to their positi on. The calculati on 
of the performance pay is directly dependent on 
the size of consolidated profi t.

Other related party transacti ons

As of 31.12.2015, the balance of loans granted to 
own employees and related parti es amounted to 
66 569 euros. (31.12.2014: 57 206).
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Transacti ons between the Group companies, 
including subsidiaries, have been eliminated from 
the consolidated fi nancial statements.

27. Subsidiaries

In euros Salva Kahjukäsitluse OÜ Business Informati on Systems OÜ

Field of acti vity Adjustment of loss events, vehicle leasing 
and repairs, real estate management

Research and development in the fi eld of 
other natural and technical sciences

Founded: September 1997 March 2009 

Parti cipati on % 100 49

Share capital 2 556 2 800

Acquisiti on cost 2 556 2 800

The prices used for related party transacti ons do 
not signifi cantly diff er from the market prices.
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28. The parent company’s unconsolidated fi nancial 
statements, as required by the Accounti ng Act 
of the Republic of Estonia

Comprehensive income statement of Salva Kindlustuse AS

In euros 2015 2014

REVENUE   

Gross premiums 19 113 942 16 592 834

Reinsurance premiums -6 648 620 -5 416 380

Changes in the provision for unearned premiums -706 984 -225 912

Reinsurer’s share of the change in provision for unearned 
premiums

306 948 124 317

   

Premiums earned, net of reinsurance 12 065 286 11 074 859

Service and commission fee revenue 1 251 444 1 257 922

Net investment revenue 1 260 230 -61 636

Other income 37 755 20 693

Total revenue 14 614 715 12 291 838

   

EXPENSES   

Gross claims -10 706 556 -9 023 962

Reinsurer’s share in claims 4 016 783 3 300 111

Change in the provision for claims outstanding -1 626 354 -4 523 514

Reinsurer’s share of the change in the provision for claims 
outstanding

719 618 4 459 821

   

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance -7 596 509 -5 787 544

  

Acquisiti on costs -4 397 163 -3 980 586

Administrati ve expenses -1 390 649 -1 371 112

Financial expenses -125 992 -115 860

Total operati ng expenses -5 913 804 -5 467 558

Tax on dividends paid -145 000 -154 177

Profi t/loss for the fi nancial year 959 402 882 559

Comprehensive profi t for the fi nancial year 959 402 882 559
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Statement of fi nancial positi on of Salva Kindlustuse AS

In euros 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 93 272 92 560

Intangible assets/Deferred acquisiti on costs 2 095 086 2 111 312

Subsidiaries 5 978 206 5 260 387

Financial investments 14 999 469 15 058 386

Receivables under reinsurance contracts 11 209 793 10 175 856

Receivables from insurance acti viti es and other receivables 1 278 355 1 385 771

Cash and cash equivalents 2 806 568 1 506 727

TOTAL ASSETS 38 460 749 35 590 999

   

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 3 200 000 3 200 000

Reserve capital 319 558 319 558

Other reserves 64 428 64 428

Retained earnings 11 998 653 12 016 094

Profi t for the fi nancial year 959 402 882 559

Total owner’s equity 16 542 041 16 482 639

Liabiliti es under insurance contracts 19 038 720 16 705 382

Liabiliti es from reinsurance 1 415 363 1 123 115

Liabiliti es from direct insurance acti viti es 537 574 410 138

Other liabiliti es 541 728 361 813

Accrued expenses and deferred revenue 385 323 507 912

Total liabiliti es 21 918 708 19 108 360

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 38 460 749 35 590 999
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Cash fl ow statement of Salva Kindlustuse AS

In euros 2015 2014 

Cash fl ow from operati ng acti viti es 2 567 213 838 732

Insurance premiums received 17 359 615 15 460 942

Claims paid and claims handling expenses -9 873 925 -9 182 811

Paid to reinsurers -1 053 314 -347 506

Paid as operati ng expenses -4 047 271 -3 957 676

Acquisiti on of shares and other securiti es -877 069 -454 525

Disposal of shares and other securiti es 629 983 778 399

Acquired fi xed rate securiti es -2 157 550 -11 346 266

Disposals of fi xed rate securiti es 2 289 908 6 674 592

Loans granted -65 700 -23 700

Repayment of loans granted 21 988 47 228

Investments in term deposits -50 000 -40 000

Return on term deposits 40 000 2 675 000

Interest received 416 923 637 543

Dividends received 15 610 9 413

Investment expenses paid -81 985 -91 901

Cash fl ow used in investi ng acti viti es -222 372 -83 712

Acquisiti on of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets -222 372 -83 712

Cash fl ow used in fi nancing acti viti es -1 045 000 -1 054 177

Dividends paid -900 000 -900 000

Income tax paid -145 000 -154 177

Total cash fl ow 1 299 841 -299 157

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1 506 727 1 805 884

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 2 806 568 1 506 727



62

SALVA KINDLUSTUSE AS
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Statement of changes in equity of Salva Kindlustuse AS

In euros Share capital Reserve capital Other reserves Retained earnings Total

As of 31.12.2013 3 200 000 319 558 64 428 12 916 094 16 500 080

Profi t for the fi nancial period 0 0 0 882 559 882 559

Dividends paid 0 0 0 -900 000 -900 000

Total changes in equity 0 0 -17 441 -17 441

As of 31.12.2014 3 200 000 319 558 64 428 12 898  653 16 482 639

Profi t for the fi nancial period 0 0 0 959 402 959 402

Dividends paid 0 0 0 -900 000 -900 000

Total changes in equity 0 0 0 59 402            59 402

As of 31.12.2015 3 200 000 319 558 64 428 12 958 055 16 542 041

See Note 17 for additi onal informati on.

Parent company’s adjusted unconsolidated equity in accordance with the requirements of the Commer-
cial Code, as of 31 December 2015:

In euros 2015 2014

Parent company’s unconsolidated equity 16 542 041 16 482 639

Investment in the parent company’s balance sheet at fair value -5 978 206 -5 260 387

Subsidiary’s value under the equity method 3 670 270 3 442 793

Total 14 234 105 14 665 045
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The Management Board of Salva Kindlustuse AS has prepared the management 
report and fi nancial statements for 2015.

Management Board:

Tiit Pahapill 
Chairman of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Irja Elias 
Member of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Urmas Kivirüüt
Member of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Andres Lõhmus
Member of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

SIGNATURES OF THE MANAGEMENT 
BOARD TO THE ANNUAL REPORT 2015





65

Retained earnings    11 079 781      
Net profi t for 2015        469 060 
Intangible assets at book value
(Subsecti on 59 (2) of the Insurance Acti viti es Act)    -1 844 976

Total distributable profi t as of 31.12.2015   9 703 965

The Management Board proposes to allocate the profi t as follows:
Reserv capital 442
To be distributed as dividends           400 000
Balance of distributable profi t aft er profi t allocati on                   9 303 523

Tiit Pahapill 
Chairman of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Irja Elias 
Chairman of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Urmas Kivirüüt
Chairman of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

Andres Lõhmus
Chairman of the  ........................................................ 17.03.2016
Management Board

PROFIT ALLOCATION PROPOSAL


